CHAPTER XXVIL

CUYAHOGA COUNTY.

Cuvahoga county, which did not acquire its
present limits until 1843, is named after its
principal river, which in the Indian language
signifies “crooked.” The river is well named,
since its source is further north than its mouth,
The surface of the county is generally undu-
lating and, except near the immediate lake
districts, the soil is generally of a loamy na-
ture. .
Now Armost PURELY [NDUSTRIAL.

Since ther early sixties, Cuyahoga county
has not only largely lost its agricultural char-
acter, but has evenl been transformed from a
commercial district into one which is almost
purely industrial.

In 1880, 184,680 bushels of wheat were pro-
duced in Cuyahoga county ; 550,108 bushels of
oats and 360,604 bushels of corn. In 1907 the
production of the same grains was as follows:
Wheat, only 132,725 bushels; oats, 349,400
bushels, and corn, 121,670 bushels. Substan-
tially, during the same period the population
of the county increased nearly 300 per cent.

CLEVELAND VIRTUALLY THE COUNTY.

From the best of authorities we learn that
the population of Cleveland was

In 1796 _ 4
“ 1Boo 7
“ 1810 57
“ 1820 (estimated) 150
“ 1830 1,075
" 1840 6,071
“ 1850 17.034
“ 1860 43.838
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“ 1870 02,829
“ 1880 160,146
“ 18g0 261,353
“ 1900 381,768
“ 1910 (estimated) 500,000

Since the commencement of the Civil war
period, when the character of Cleveland was
permanently fixed as industrial, that great city

" has virtually absorbed the activities of the en-

tire county. The valnation of the property in
the county is about $250,000,000, while the
real estate and personmal property outside of
this great municipality is placed at about $55,-
000,000.

OrcaNizaTioN oF Cuvanoca COUNTY.

By the articles of association adopted by
the Connecticut Land Company, in 1795, the
Western Reserve was to he surveved into
townships of 16,000 acres each, one of which
was to be selected as the initial point for set-
tlement. Cleveland township was selected for
the latter purpose and the five other townships
to be sold to actual setilers were Euclid,
Willoughby, Mentor, Madison and one on the
Mahoning river. When Trumbull county was
organized in 1800, Cleveland township, then
a part of it, consisted of all the present area of
Cuyahoga county, a part of Geauga and all of
the Western Reserve west of the Cuyahoga.
On December 31, 1805, the general assembly
of Ohio passed an act dividing Trumbull
county and establishing Geauga county. This

-territory comprised the western and a part of

the northern limits of Trumbull county and
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HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

extended west to the Cuyahoga river and
north to Lake Erie. On January 16, 1810,
Cuyahoga county was fixed as embracing all
the territory now within its limits east of the
river and including Willoughby township.
There was an earnest dispute over the line
between Cuyahoga and Huron counties in
1811, and when Medina county was orgamzed
in 1812, the western houndary of Cuyahoga
county was changed. [orain county was or-
ganized in 1824, which created another dis-
turbance over the western boundary, and in
1840 and 1841 there were still changes of ter-
ritory between Geauga, Lake and Cuyvahoga
counties, in which Willoughby township was
given to Lake. By this act the present
bounds of this county were fixed.

Tor COMMENCEMENT OF CLEVELAND.

General Moses Cleaveland was not the orig-
inal discoverer of the importance of the
geographical site of the great city which bears
his name. As early as 1755 there was a French

station within the present limits of Cuyahoga

county, and several years before that time the
mouth of the Cuyahoga river was recognized
by explorers as the natural site for a great
commercial mart.

“As early as 1765, says Harvey Rice, in
one of his addresses hefore the Early Settlers’
Association of Cuyahoga County, “Benjamin
Franklin, with his usual sagacity, foresaw its
availability, and recommended its occcupancy
as a military post. Washington, while vari-
ous projects for water communication between
the great northern lakes and Chesapeake Bay
were being considered, suggested the prac-
ticability of a route from Lake Erie by way
of the Cuyahoga, Tuscarawas and Muskingum
into the Ohio, as an outlet to the future in-
land commerce of the lakes. This route
necessitated a portage near Akron of less than
seven miles, whereby shipments were to be
transferred from the lakes to" the river Ohio;
thence to ascend its upper tributaries into the
mountains; from whence by another portage
would be reached the navigable rivers failing
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info the Atlantic. The commercial importance
of the mouth of the Cuyahoga was thus early
perceived by distinguished men; nevertheless
history gives no reliable information of its
permanent occupancy for trade or commerce
anterior to the year 1786 ; nor is there anv evi-
dence that anv active measures were taken to
carry forward this scheme for opening com-
munication hetween the lakes and the Atlantic,
and nothing more is heard of it until 3 793—4;
when the state of New York proposed to pro-
vide an outlet for its lake commerce by clear-
ing out and improving the Oswego and Mo-
hawk rivers, and then the discussion of the
route by the Cuyahoga and Tuscarawas rivers
into the Ohio was revived. We are destitute
of further historical facts concerning either
of these projects irom the year 1794 until
1807—five years after Ohio was admitted into
the Union as a State. In that year the legisla-
ture passed an act autherizing a lottery for the
purpose of raising $rz,000 for improving
navigation between Lake FErie and the river
Chio.”  The lottery tickets were sold, but
afterward the monev was refunded and no
drawing ever occurred. Water connection he-
tween Lake Erie and the Ohio river therefore
remaired an unsolved problem until the final
completion of the Ohio canal in 1827. The
completion of this undertaking finally fixed
Cleveland’s position as a city of national "im-
portance.

Trr Moravian Misstowns.

Ten years prior to the coming of the Cleve-
land survey party, a band of Moravian mis-
sionaries, with a number of their Indian con-
verts, arrived from Detroit at the mouth of the
Cuvahoga river in a vessel called the “Macki-
naw.” They proceeded up the river ahout ten
mriles from the site of the present city of
Cleveland and settled in an abandoned viilage
of the Ottawas, within the present limits of
Independence township. Although they called
their refuge “Pilgrims’ Rest,” their stay there
was brief, for in the April following (1786)
they abandoned their temporary settlement for
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Huron river and located in what is now Erie
coumnty, at a point which they named New
Salem, near the present site of Milan. Until
1790 the British refused to yield possession of
the country along the shores of the lake west
of the Cuyahoga and even when the surveyors
of the Western Reserve arrived in 1796 their
traders had a house north of the Detroit road
on the future site of Ohio City.

First FourtH oF Jury,

On the 4th of July, 1796, the surveying
party of the Connecticut Land Company for
the Western Reserve arrived at Conneaut, or
rather at the mouth of Cuyahoga ecreek, which
was christened Port Independence. As gen-
eral agent of the company, Moses Cleaveland
was in active command of the expedition.. His
refined but rugged features, his square and
substaniial figure, proclaimed him to be a nat-
ural leader of men. Fortunately, the general
has left on record an account of this historical
celebration of the first Independence day in
the Western Reserve, and also of the appear-
ance of the future site of Cleveland, while it
was yet in a state of virgin nature. From a
series of letters unearthed a number of years
ago and from a great mass of correspondence
which had been preserved by Walter Il
Phelps, a descendant of Oliver Phelps, chair-
man of the board of trustees of the Connecti-
cut Land Company, the following are repro-
duced, as they came from the pen of General
Moses Cleaveland, July 5, and Angust 5, 1766.
The latter, it will be remembered, was dated

less than two weeks after the landing of the -

party upon the site of Cleveland and while
the survey was in active operation:

Port INDEPENDENCE,
aLias Conveaur Creex, July s, 1796, Sir—
We sailed from Buffalo creck a week yes-
terday, and having head winds and very
heavily loaded, with much perseverance was
able 1o reach this place yesterday at 6 o'clock
p. m. It being the 4th of July and the sound
of celebration of Independence at Presque Isle
animated us to a participation of the general
joy. We gave a Federal salute and one in
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honor of the new state of Connecticut, chris-
tened the place (Port Independence), drank g
few patriotic toasts and supped and retired in
reasonable order and decency.

There are a number of families of the Ma-
rengo Indianis who reside on this creek. Paqua,
alias Bear, acts as the chief, and his com-
panions and I have had an interview and
smoked the pipe of peace. [ told them 1 shouid
not purchase any right of theirs. I should not
disturb them and would treat them iriendly,
and they might improve their land and raise
their corn, and continue to hunt as usual. With
this they appeared to be satisfied, and declare.
they will use our people well. They had been
told that we should drive them off and were
much alarmed, Their fears are now to appeat-
ance removed: I think we shall receive no
further trouble from them, except begging. If
possible, they are ten times worse than the
Senekas. [ am informed there are a few on the
Cuyahoga. I shall in a few days set out and
see them, and T think no fears will creep in the
minds of any. To-morrow Mr. Pofter and the
other surveyors set out for to take the south
line, and as soon as they have proceeded west
five miles will commence running the ranges,
The appearance of the country at first view
strikes most agreeably, and I am not dissatis-
fied on further view. I have found people on
here a viewing and anxious to settle.

Through great encouragement and much
persuasion and pains taken to get settlers on
the Presque lIslands, I have received many
applications of their settlers to purchase and
settle here, We must send back some of our
hoats to bring on the provisions left at Fort
Erie. The meén are yet in good health and
spirits. I am with sentiments of esteemn your
most obedient, :

Moses CLEAVELAND.

PROGRESS OF THE SURVEY.

PorT INDEPENDENCE, 5 Aug., 1706,

Gentlemen :—Sincé my last communication I
have seen, I believe, all the Indians that reside
on the lands deeded by the existing treaties and
find but few, and have so settled the business
that no fear can possibly be apprehended from
that quarter. Their small possessions will do
us 1o essential injury. It will be a market for
venison and a place to which traders will resort
to purchase their peltries. While they ¢laim not
any title (but resident), I tell them they shall
not be disturbed ; the time will come when they
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will voluntarily quit their possessions. Mr.
Porter and the surveyors are ouf and have run
the Fast line and taken the latitude on the
South, which is sixty-eight miles from where it
strikes the lalke. The south line is part run,
and they are now tryving to take five ranges.

CHARACTER OF LLANDS,

Mr. Porter and the surveyors not returning,
I am unable to inform you the quality of the
fands, but am apprehensive (from informa-
tion) that the east and northerly parts are low
and flat, though not of the most inferior kind,
The lands on the dividing ridge East and West
more hilly, and of a better quality. On the lake
shore to the Cuyahoga, up that river, as also
up the one called Ashtabula, now Mary Faster,
and the Grand river, I have personally exam-
wed, vet not so fully as to determine the width
ot.the bottoms.

The Mary Easter is about twice as large as
the Conneought. The land excellent, black and
white walnut, sycamore, cypress and hickory,
grapes, hops and crab-apples, piums and white
thorn, etc., ete.  The Grand river is about twice
as large as the Mary Easter, and will afford
good navigation for small vessels and boats.
The land on which we went is as good as any [
ever saw in any country. On this river is an
Indian corn, etc., growing luxuriantly. The
Indians were all out on their hunting parties.

The Cuyahoga is navigable for sloops about
eight miles as the river runs, and for boats to
the portage, if the immense quantity of trees
drove down and lodged are cleared out. The
land excellent, the water clear and lively cur-
rent, and streams and springs falling into all
three rivers. We went up the Cuvahoga in a
Schenectady hoat about twenty-five miles fo
the Old Moravian Indian town, and I imagine
on a meridian line not more than twelve or fif-
teen miles, Here the bottoms widen, and, as I
am informed, increase in width, and if possible
in quality. [ believe we could have proceeded
further up the river, but found the time allotted
and the provisions inadequate to perform the
whole route. At this place we found a stream
that empties into the river which will make a
good mill seat. The lands on the lake shore in
some places low, here and there a small cran-
berry pond, not of any great extent, nor dis-
covered low drowned lands of ‘any bigness for
twenty or thirty miles on the lake shore.

On the east of the Cuyahoga are clay banks
from twenty to forty feet high, on the top the
land level, covered with chestnut, oak, walnut,
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ash, and some sugar maple. There are but few
hem!locks, and those only on swamp, pond or
take, and in the immense quantity of flood
woodl lodged on the lakes and rivers I rarely
found any of that wood. The shore west of
the mouth of the Cuvahoga is a steep bank for
ten miles, the quality of the soil I know not,
but from the growth and kind of timber these
present no unfavorable aspect.

I should with great pleasure readily comply
with what T suppose you have heretofore ex-
pected that I should leave this country about
this time. I have not as vet been interrupted
in a constant attention to business more.than
I could have 1magined, or would have volun-
tarily entered into, and I see no prospect of its
lessening at present. Those who are meanly
envying the compensation and sitting at their
case and see their prosperity increasing at the
loss of health, ease and comfort of others, I
wish might experience the hardships but for
one month; if not then satished their grum-
bling, would give me no pain.

I apprehend the stagnant waters in Lake
Erie {(except to the westward) must be of
small dimensions.  The interior lakes and
ponds, though not included in Livingston's
computation, are, ! expect, few and small ; un-
less the land bears more to the northwest after
it passes the Cuyahoga than it does this side,
the surplus will not be consequential. [ expect
soon to leave this for the westward, and shall
make my residence there until I am ready to
return to Connecticut. The men are remark-
ably healthy, though without sauce or vege-
tables, and in good spirits. I hope they will
continte so. At Presque Isle and parts ad-
jacent the people have been and still are very
sickiv. I am, with sentiments of esteem, your
most obedient, Moses CLEAVELAND.

Biocrarmy OF GENERAL CLEAVELAND.

Asg the party which surveved the original
town of Cleveland made a landing at the
month of the Cuyahoga river fuly 22, 1796,
that date is generally observed by the citizens
of Cleveland as Founders” Day, and in 1888,
the ninety-second anmiversary, was unveiled
the beautiful and impressive bronze statue of
Gerneral Cleaveland, which now stands on the
public square, surrounded by massive brick
and stone blocks, and grand and impressive
public buildings. After laying out the city,
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(General Cleaveland returned to his home in
Canterbury, Connecticut, where he died on the
16th of November, 1806, aged fifty-two vears.
The deceaged was born in the town of Canter-
bury, January 20, 1754, graduating from Yale
College in 1777, and practicing law in his na-
tive town for nearly thirty vears before he set
foot irr the Western Reserve. He was elected
a member of the Connecticut state legislature
several times, and was recognized as a prac-
tical statesman and public man of high char-
acter. In 1779, while a young man, he was ap-
pointed by the national congress as captain of
a company of sappers and miners in the army
of the United States, but after rendering brief
services in this capacity he resigned and re-
turned to the practice of law. In 1796 he was
not only elected general of the state militia
but chosen chief of the staff of surveyors sent
out by the Connecticut Land Company to the
Western Reserve. '
of the Cuyahoga river prior to commencing
the active work of the survey is thus described
by a speaker of the present, on Founders’ day :
“In attempting to land, he ran his hoat
aground amid the bulrushes on the eastern
margin of the river, He now realized, though
not an infant, that he was a ‘second Moses’
cradled among the bulrushes. He scon extri-
cated himself, however, and ascended the steep
bank of the river, and, on looking ahout him,
found that he stood upon an elevated plain,
bounded on the west by a ribbon-like river and
on the nortly by a sea of molten silver. He
probably stood about where we now stand
when he exclaimed: ‘Here is the spot where,
in the coming future, will arise a great city.””

TaE Frst SurvEy 0F CLEVELAND.

Although General Cleaveland was chief oi
the party of surveyots which laid out the
Western Reserve and the future site of Cleve-
land, the active work was under the direction
of Augustus Porter, "assisted by Seth Pease
and Amos Spafford. The area selected for the
founding of the capital of the Western Re-
serve contained about 520 acres, and was di-

His landing at the mouth -
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vided into two-acre lots, with reservation for
streets, alleys and public grounds. By the
first of October, 1796, the city map was con-
sidered complete, and upon it was written in
fair hand, “City of Cleveland, in honor of the
chief of the surveying party and the general
agent of the Connecticut Land Company for
the Western Reserve.” Tn the spelling of the
city the letter “a,” which the general always
used in his name, was omitted, as was the cus-
tom generally followed by other members of

SETH PEASE,

the family to which General Cleaveland be-
longed.

Another account for the spelling of the
name, which has been often repeated, is that
a certain eastern newspaper man “found it
convenient to increase the capacity of his iron
frame by reducing the number of letfers in
the name of the city.” The original streets, as
laid out in the Pease map, were Miami, Water,
Ontario and Erie, running at right angles to
the lake; and Superior, Huron, Federal, Lake,
Ohio and Bath, running parallel to it. Of
course, these early streets were like those of all
the early towns—Ilaid out for short distance,
sometimes not more than paths, and none of
them of not any great length.

. Euclid avenue was surveyed [rom Huron to
the public square in 1815, “At first it was not
an important road.” Kinsman and Broadway
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. were used much more, but as the city grew
the beauty of this street increased. In the be-
ginning it was wet and marshy; was filled in
with logs and was not graded until 1857, to
the city limits. As houses were built, drain-
age extended and trees felled, this road, like
all other roads, dried up.o

Kinsman street was named after Kinsman
township in Trumbull county, and got its orig-
inal name from the Kiusman family, one of
the most reliable families of the Western Re-
serve. The grandsons of old John Kinsman
now live in Warren and a great-grandson is
the Bishop of Delaware {Episcopal). Kins-

man street was changed later to Woodland ;
© street, Middle highway, Ewclid avenue, and

avenue. Scovill avenue was named from Philo
Scovill.

CLEVELAND RESURVEYED.

In 1801 Major Amos Spafford resurveyed
the original plot of Cleveland and on his map
he has described the public square as follows:
“The square is laid out at the intersection of
Superior street and Ontario strest and con-
tains ten acres. The center of the junction of
the two roads is the exact center of the
square.”

This plot, now known as Monumental park,
was never to be given up to private 1ses, but,
with the subsequent widening of streets in its
vicinity, it was eventually decreased to ahout
four acres. As shown by the Pease and Spat-
ford maps, the easterly line of the criginal
city of Cleveland was the east boundary of
the tier of lots bevond Erie street coinciding
with the present Canfield, It began at the
take and extended southerly one tier of lots
south of High street. The line then ran to
the river; thence to Vineyard lane; thence to
the junction of Water and Superior streets;
thence io the river and down that stream to
its mouth. Superior street was one hundred
and thirty-two feet in width and the other
streets ninety-nine. With full confidence in
the future growth of Cleveland, its founder
had directed that the lands immediately beyond
the town proper should be laid out in ten-acre
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lots and thé rest of the township in one hun-
dred acre lots. The territory which would thep
be designated as “suburban” was surveyved and
laid out in ten-acre lots during 1797, and ex-
tended on the cast to the line of v?gat is now
Fifty-fiith street, and on the south to the ridge
along Kingshury run, extending westerly to
the Cuyahoga river, “The TFlats” were not
surveved into lots, and there was also an wn-
surveyed strip between the ten-acre lots and
the river, near the mouth of Kingsbury run,
South, middle and north highways were laid
out through the suburban lots, being ninety-
nine feet in width to correspond with the city
streets.” South highway became Kinsman

North highway, St. Clair.
Couxty ProNgErs axp HAPPENINGS.

Way hack between 1783 and 1800 a block
house was built as a trading post by John
Jacob Astor, at the ocutléet of the old river,
bevond the present location of the water
works, probably at the foot of Waverly street.
Mr. Astor may have named the land lying
west of the Cuyahaga—Brook!yn—in honor of
his own neghboring citv.

Job V. Stiles located in Cleveland in 1766
and built a cabin on the ground opposite the
Weddell House on Bank street.

James Kingshury raised corn in 1797 on an
Indian clearing where the old city hall stands
in Cleveland. He later moved back on the
Ridge. f :

First hotel ‘u Cleveland, erected in 1797, by
Lorenzo Carter, and stood “under the hill,
about one hundred feet back from the river
and some three hundred feet northerly from
the present St. Clair street.”

Abraham Hickox, the village hacksmith, had
his shop south of the middle of the block he-
tween the square and Seneca street. His sign
read: “Uncle Abram works here.”

The first brewery was built “on the Light
House street lot,” and the first fire in the com-
mmmity was when that brewery burned.

Captain Timothy Doane built one of the
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early houses. His wife and babies, accom-
panied by his brother Nathaniel, came with
two horses through the forest path to their
new home. Mrs. Doane rode and carried one
baby; her hrother-in-law led a horse with two
other children on it. Mrs. Doane was an un-
usual woman of executive ability and industry,
and the baby she carried lived to be an old
man. He remembered how he used to play
with pappooses, who taught him to eat can-
dles. At one time either” he alone, or accom-
panied by his dark-skinned friend, ate up
half of the winter supply. The Doane family
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house with ample grouads, corner of Superior
and Seneca streets.

‘Tt is supposed that Edward Payne had the
first dry goods store in Cleveland.

The first three-story huilding on the West-
ern Reserve was the Franklin House, which
was built by Philo Scovill in 1826, and the
spot was afterwards used for the erection of
the Scovill building. As this work is going
to press wreckers are demolishing the build-
ing located on the west side of West Twenty-
fifth street, near Detroit avenue. In the early
days the Franklin House was the place where

PIONEER FAST STAGE LINE

(Courtesy of 8. P. Orth.)
STAGE COACH HEADQUARTERS.

was identified with all the early history of
Cleveland and is probably as well remembered
by posterity as any other family, Great balls
were held at Seth Doane’s tavern and people
were turned out of the church for dancing, be-
ing taken back when they said they were sorry.

Mrs. W. A. Ingham in 1893 says: “In
1810 there were but three frame dwellings
here and five or six log houses,” and in 1812
Mrs. Long relates that the public square was
only partly cleared and had in it many stumps
and bushes. In 1831 Dr. Long built a stone

From OLEVELAND to PITTSBURG,

Leaves daily al 8 o'clock A, M., via Bedjord, Hudsen, Ra.
venna, Deerfield, Salem and New Liston, to Welisville,
where they will take tha

ETBLM

WELLSVILLE AND NEW LISBON
TO PITTSBURG.

‘Thzough in 30 kowrs from Clevelana,

Bewng the shortest route between the twe citics, and afford.
ing & pleasaet trip through a flourishing part of Qhic,ona
good road, and in better Conches thao any line running ta
said place.
The ebove line is connected with Lhe

@ood Intent Fast Mail Stage,

AND

Pioneer Packet & Rail-Road Lines,

For Phil, "‘"‘ New-York, Balti; and Pasking
City, in which possengers travelling in tho above Ene have
the preference.

Orexcpin Mr. Kellogg’s new boilding, opposite the
Franldin.Houose, No, 36 Superior-sireet, ender the Ameri-

cax House,
I. R, CUNNINGIHAM, Agent.
., Cleveland, July, 1837.

many famous personages who passed through
Cleveland by coach stayed over night.

John Jacob Astor, who had the first trading
post with the Indians in Cleveland, made it a
regular stopping place. His house, the oldest
in Cleveland, stands on West Twenty-cighth
street, near Detroit avenue.

In 1810 wolves’ skins brought a dollar.
Men had to pay six cents to be ferried across
the river; loaded wagons fifty, empty twenty-
five. A person running a ferry paid four dol-
lars license, and a tavern license was the same.
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Sarah McIlrath Shaw, an early Cuyahoga
county settler, was very much interested in
her church and her husband was interested
in the schools. They had no children, al-
though they brought up and educated many.
Three of these were Indians who became mis-
sioparies. At one time Mrs. Shaw wanted
some momey for her church and her husband
told her if she would drink sage tea instead
of real teas for a year he would give it to
her. This she did.

What a lesson is here! First, that when a
woman did at least half the work she was
not entitled to any money, but it was given
to her! Second, that any woman would have
the courage to give up the things she liked
the best, namely tea, in order to help her
church. No one would have thought of ask-
ing Mr. Shaw to give up his grog, and prob-
ably his tobacco, for the schools he dearly
loved.

The town of Olmstead was orlgmally called
Kingston and then T.enox, In 1829 Charles
IL. Olmstead, who owned land in the northern
part of the township, offered to make the peo-
ple a present of a library if they would change
Lenox to Olmstead. This they did.

The first frame house built in Olmstead
was raised by the danghteérs of Lemuel Hoad-
ley. The house was building when the father
and mother went away for the day and the
daughters, Maria and FEunice, thought it
would be nice to have the framework raised
when the parents returned. They called the
assistance of a neighbor, Mrs. Scdles, and the
three completed the work. ‘

Among a pgrty of Connecticut people
who came to Middleburg, walking from Buf-
falo, was Mrs. Bela Bronson, who carried a
child in her arms part of the way. This child
was Shalock and afterward he became a
clergyman in the Presbyterian church and
president of Kenyon College.

The first Bible class taught in Middleburg
was Mary Baldwin’s. From childhood she
was,/ interested in education and saved by
teathing enough money to go to college. This,
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however, she loaned a young man, whom she
married and together they came West. To-
gether with him she founded the Baldwin
University. She lived to be ninety-four years.

It is recorded ¢f Alice Brockway Roggers,
of Chagrin Falls, for twenty years she never
left her own door yard. She lived o be
ninety-five years old.

CLEVELAND A PorT OoF ENTRY.

The next really important event which had
a bearing upen the future standing and
growth of Cleveland was its designation, in
1805, as a port of entry for the customs dis-
trict of the Western Reserve. In March, .
1799, congress had divided the Northwest
territory into customs collection districts, that
of Erie including the shores of the lake from
the Pennsylvania line to the Mawmee river,
the port of entry for which was ordered to be
established near Sandusky. In 1805 this dis-
trict was divided, its western boundary being
the Vermillion river. The president was au-.
thorized to proclaim a port of entry for the
new district, which he' did by designating
Clevelasid. On the 17th of January, 1806,
Judge John Walworth was commissioned col-
lector. In 1805 a postoffice was also estab-
lished in Cleveland and Elisha Norton was
appointed postmaster.

NewsUrG THRE HEALTHIER PLACE.

In the meantime the surveys had bheen
progressing in other portions of the tferritory
new embraced in Cuyahoga county. In fact,
Newburg had been allotted in 1796 and Bed-
ford and Wairensville in the following year.
In Newburg, it will be remembered, was to
be raised up within the succeeding few years,
one of Cleveland’s most .threatening rivals.
During the progress of the survey it devel-
oped that the country near the mouth of the
“Cuyahoga river was especially subject to ma-
larial fevers, and this fact occasioned for some
time a migration to the district further south,
in which movement Newburg derived consid-
erable benefits. During the initial year of the
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survey, three members of the party died of
malarial fever, buf the season’s work was done
and a boatload of fourteen weak, sick and dis-
couraged men left Cleveland for their Con-
necticut homes. Yet the geographical and
commercial advantages of Cleveland’s location
overcame all such minor drawbacks, and even-
tually Newburg and Brooklyn, or the “City
of Ohio,” were absorbed into the body-politic
of the more ¥igorous municipality.

Fouvxping oF INDUSTRIES.

Prigr to the esiablishment of Cleveland as
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for the manufacture of spirits. This father
of Cleveland’s tremendous industrial life had
a daily capacity of but two quarts.

In 1808 Cleveland’s great shipbuilding in-
dustries originated in the person of Lorenzo
Carter; who built the schooner, “Zephyr,” of
thirty tons, and somewhat later Joel Thorpe
launched the-“Sally,” of about equal tonnage.
A more pretentious schooner of sixty tons
was built in 1814 by Levi Johnston, and

_christened the “Pilot,” It is related that twelve

yoke of oxen were required to drag the craft
from the boat-yard to the river, half a mile

FIEST COURT HOUSE.

a port of entry, little progress had been made
toward the establishment of industries in Cuy-
ahoga county. The original plant was the
grist and saw mill erected by Wheeler W,
Williams on Mill creek in the town of New-
burg. The latter passed into the hands of
Judge (afterward governor) Samuel Hunting-
ton. Cleveland, however, was not far behind
its rival, for in 1801 David Bryant erected
a log building near the foot of Lakeside
avenue, and there set up a small copper still

away. Afterward, for half a century, ship-
building held, perhaps, the leading place
among the industries of Cleveland.

Chagrin had the first mill stones for grind-
ing corn in Cuyahoga county, They were

‘made in 1815,

First Court Housk.

As stated, Cuyahoga county was created
in 1810 'with Cleveland as the county seat,
its first court house being a temporary build-
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ing on the north side of Superior street. It
was huilt by Levi Johnston in 1813, was two
stories high and stood where the old fountain
in the Public Square was. “At the west end,
lower story, was the jail, with debtors™ and
eriminals’ cells grated windows in front; east
end, upper story, the court room. At the
landing of the inside staircase a fireplace, sizz-
ling with green oak wood, feebly struggled to
warm the institution. This was the assembly
room for every description of meetings, until
the Academy was built.”

On June 15 of that vear the first court of
record of Cuyahoga county was hield. with
Tudge Ruggles president, John Walworth be-
ing clerk of court, and S. S. Baldwin sheriff.
Peter Hitcheock, who was appointed prosecut-
ing attarney, recewved fifteen dollars for that
term’s work.

Tt was-on the Public Square, on which stood
the old log court house, that the Tndian Omse
was hung for ihe murder of two white men
near Sandusky. Major Carter had charge
of the execution, the dusky victim of the law
begging to be shot rather than hung, but, as
the trial had been according to the civil law,
its sentence had to be executed in the usual
wav. Omic was somewhat comforted by he-
ing furnished with a pint of whisky just be-
fore his execution.

CraveLanp Hrears PerrY's GUNs.

Tt was while the log court house was still
in a somewhat unfinished condition that the
people of Cleveland became aware of the his-
torical engagement on Lake Erie, nnder Com-
modore Perry. If is related that the morn-
ing of September 10, 1813, was sunny and
clear. Cortracior Johnston was at work on
his bhuilding, but suddenly hearing distant
noises lke thunder, threw down his tools to
consider the matter. Suddenly the thought
came to him like a flash; he shouted to those
around him: “It’s Perry fighting the British.”
With one accord the news spread through
the little settlement. Cleveland discontinued
its work, both industrial and domestic, and its
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populace in a mass hurried to the banks of the
lake., As it afterwards transpired, the great
battle was seventy miles away, northwest of
Sandusky, in Put-in Bay, but the clear air
bore the thunders of the cannonade even
down to Erie, over 150 miles distant. Perrv's
guns were known by their deep notes, and the
anxious people assembled on the lake shore
waited for them to tell the tale of the distant
fight. The noise of the British guns soon
filled up the harmony of the battle, bhut at
length they died out one by one and only the
bass notes of Perry’s cannonade could be
heard. It is said that at this point, when
the Americans were confident that victory was
with the national arms, the joy of the waiting
Clevelanders was almost transformed into
hysteria.

CLEVELAND A VILLAGE.

On the 15th of October, 1814, the town-
ship of Newburg was organized, and em-
hraced within its limits the residences of such
important citizens as Thomas Kingsbury,
Erastus Milier and Rudolphus Edwards. 1t
has heen already stated that at Newburg were
established the first mills in the county, and,
in fact, for a considerable petiod its superior
water power enabled the locality to lead Cleve-
lancd hoth in actual importance and in future
prospects. Indeed, for not a few years Cleve-
land was described as “the town on the lake,
six miles from Newburg”; hut Cleveland’s ad-
vantages as a port of entrv and the county
seat soon had its effect, and on the 23rd of
December, 1814, an act was passed by the gen-
eral assembly to take effect on the first Mon-
day of June following, by which the village
of Cleveland was incorporated. The houn-
daries of the new village were described as
“so0 much of the city plat of Cleveland as
lies northwardly of Huron street and west-
wardly of Erie street, as originally laid out
by the Connecticut Land Company.” In pur-
suance of this act, on the first Monday of
June. 1815, twelve of the inhabitants of that
village (its entire voting strength) met and
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HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

unanimously clected Alfred Kelley as presi-
dent; Horace I’erry, recorder; Alonzo Carter,
treasurer; John A. Kelley, marshal; George
Wallace and John Riddle, assessors, and Sam-
uel Williamson, David Long and Nathan
Perry, trustees.

SOME OF THE REAT, PIoNEERS.

When the surveying party returned to their
homes in the east, it is said, there were only
threc white persons left on the Western Re-
serve—Joseph Langdon and Mr. and Mrs.
Job Stiles. Mr. Tangdon himself left soon
afterward, but his place was taken hy Edward
Paine, who boarded in the Stiles family and
afterward hecame widely known as General
Paine, the founder of Painesville,

The year 1797 brotight an accession of at
least four Cleveland pioneers who helped to
maie the early hiftory of the place. Perhaps
the most imporvtant of the arrivals of this
year was major Lorenzo Carter, a native of
Rutland, ¥V erqﬂont, and a thorough and warm-
hearted pionepr. Farly in this year also came
Elijah Gum}" and Judge Kingsbury, {rom

Conneaut, and later in the vear, Nathaniel
Doane and Rudolphus Edwards. In Janu-
ary, 1799, Mr. Doane moved to the “Cor-

ners,” which bears his name, and from that
time untll April, 800, Major Carter’s was
the only white family in Cleveland. Py
In 1801 Samuel Huntington, a nephew of
Governor Huntington, of Connecticut, then a
lawyer of about thirty-five, settled in Cleve-
land. He was a member of the first consti-
tutional convention of Ohio; the first state
senator of the county; judge of the Supreme
Court in 1803 and governor in 1808, e
afterward made DTainesville his permanent
home, when he died in 1817, When he located
at Cleveland he resided in a block house on
Superior street, which then stood on the site
of the “American Housc.” Judge Hunting;

ton’s house was made of hewn logs, with

sawed flooring and doors and was then consid-
ered the height of domestic architecture,
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[ There are many intercsting facts fo be found
in regard to him in the early chapters of the
general history and in the sketch of I.ake
county.]

Lorenzo Carter, not to be outdone in the
hutlding line, scon after erected the first frame
house in town. In 1802 the first school house
was opencd at My, Carter’s residence, that
gentleman also heing licensed hy the court as a
hotel keeper,

Several years afterward, Judge Hunting-
ton and a number of other citizens of Cleve-
land removed to the vicinity of Newburg on
Mill creek, as that locality was not only busy
as an industrial section, but was considered
more healthful than the little settlement at
the mouth of the Cuyahoga river; but Major
Carter continned faithful io his first love, re-
mained at Cleveland, and in 1810 built a ware-
house at™the mouth of the river and other-
wise added to the improvements of the place.
During the war period from 1812 to 1813,
however, little progress was made in the city,
the number of buildings in the latter vear\
being only thirty-four.

Bromwxing or PuBLic ScHOOLS,

The vear 1817 was an important one in the
early history of the village of Cleveland, as
it marked the commeacement of its public
school system. In that year the village coun-
cil passed an ordinance to reimburse twenty-
five citizens who had subscribed $168 toward
the building of a public school.

In 1817, alse, the era of log warehouses
ceased. TLeonard Case and Captain William
Gaylord built a large frame edifice for the
purpose, on the river north of St. Clair street,
Duting the previous year the Commercial
Bank of Lake Erie, had been opened, which,
although it closed in 1819, was afterwards
placed upon its feet and greatly flourished.

On the 23rd of April of this vear “Walk-
in-the-Water,” the first steamboat to navigate
the waters of the Great Lakes, entered the
harbor of Cleveland.



D

JAMES KINGSBURY. ¢“UNCLE?? ABRAM HICKOA.
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FOUR SPLENDID PIONEERS.
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‘PrEss AND CHURCHES ARRIVE.

The Cleveland Gazette and Commercial
Register, the pioneer of the local press, made
its. first appearance July 31, 1318, and in
1820 the city commenced to take its place
as a transportation center by establishing a
stage line to Columbus, with a branch to Nor«
walk, Afterward connections were established
with Pittsburg and Buffalo, and for thirty
years this system of passenger travel flour-
ished, the transportation of Ffieight, of course,
heing conducted through the Ohio Canal and
the lake marine.

About the year 1820 the first church organi-
zations of Cleveland commenced to take shape,
the first meetings of the early societies being
generally held in the old log court house. The
upper, or second story, of that building was
the court room, and here the Episcopalians
held their first meetings, before Trinity church
was built on the corner of Seneca and St
Clair streets, About the same time the Pres-
byterians and Baptists commenced to hold
meetings in the old academy building, which
stood upon the site of engine house No. I.

In 1826 the enterprising men of Cleveland
concluded that a better court house was a-pub-
lic necessity. Under the general supervision
of H. L. Noble. and George C." Hills, work
upon the building was commenced in the
spring of 1827, but its completion wa# consid-
erably delaved by the very sickly season of
1827 and 1828,

OrexniNg oF OH1o CANAL.

It was on the 7th of July, 182y, that the
Ohio Canal was formally opened—that enter-
prise which did so much to establish the city
commercially. Upon the occasion of the com-
mencement of the.canal undertaking the citi-
zens of Cleveland had the honor and pleasure
of greeting Governor Clinton, the great father
of the New York canal system. It was fhe
building of the Erie Canal through New York
state which had stimulated the people of Ohio
to undertake the building of the canal which
connected the waters of the lakes with those
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of the Ohio river. It was chiefly through the
efforts of Alired Kelley that the northern ter-
minus of the canal was located at Cleveland.
The first work was done on the Licking
Summit, about three miles west of Newark,
on the Fourth of July, 182g, and Governor
Clinton dug the first shovelful of earth which
marked the practical commencement of the
canal. The New York executive arrived at
Cleveland on the 3rd of July, sailing into the
harbor on the steamer “Superior.” As the
steamer could not make the harbor with safety,
it was anchored in the outer waters, where
the commander ordered a yawl to take the
distinguished governor and his aides ashore.
There were also present in the New York
party Messrs. Rathborn and Lord, who had
loaned the people of Ohio the money with
which to commence the canal, as well as Judge
Conkling of the United States district court.
The boat was rowed up the river, with the
stars and stripes waving over it. It landed
at the foot of Superior street, where the recep-
tion committee and many citizens were gath-
ered, who, with Governor Clinton and his
distinguished friends, were escorted to the
Mansion house, where they were addressed
by Judge Samuel: Cowles, who had been se-
lected for that purpose. In his eloquent reply
Governor Clinton said that “when our canals
were made, even if they had cost five million
dollars, they would he worth three times that
sum; that the increased price of our produc-
tions, in twenty years would be worth five
millions of dollars; that the money saved on

“the transportation of goods to bur people dur-

ing the same period would be five millions of
dollars, and that the canals would fifially pay
their tolls and refund their entire cost, prin-
cipal and interest.”

CLINTON'S DEPARTURE FROM CLEVELAND.

De Witt Clinton is described by an eye wit-
ness to his reception as a man of most majes-
tic person: “In his person, large and robust;
his forehead high and broad; his hair black
and curly ; his eyes large, black and brilliant—
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and, take him all in all, he looked as though
he was born to command.” The eve witness
referred to, George B, Merwin, further de-
scribes the departure of Governor Clinten and
his party from Cleveland in the following
graphic style: “As the weather was very
warm and the distance to Licking county about
one hundred and fifty miles, it was thought
best to get an carly start in the morning and
take breakfast at Mother Parker’s, who kept a
tavern at the fadt of Tinker’s creek hill, about
one and a half miles down the creek west of
Bedford, She was a black-eyed, steel-trap
style of a Vermont woman, and a good cook.
Half an hour after daylight an extra stage
¢ame and the party left.”

“A small swivel, used for celebrations, had
been left at some former oceasion on the brow
of the hill on the west side of Vineyard lane,
now cailed South Water street. My father
wolce up the late Orlando Cutter—his store
was where the Aiwater block stands—and got
some powder, and when the stage got a few
rods up, Superior street, gave the party a
parting salute; then, mounting his horse, he
scon passed the stage and rode on to give
Mrs, Parker information who was coming,
and thai she must prepare a good breakfast.
He also inquired where her husband, Cordee,
was, and if he had taken his bitters, of which
the jolly oid feilow was very fond. She said
he was out at the barn, where my father found
him with as heavy a load as his buckskin
breeches could waddle under. My father
quietly picked the old fellow up and took him
in the granary, returned to the house and
assisted in getiing the breakfast, by grinding
and making the coffee, while Mother Parker
fried the ham and eggs and made some bis-
cuits. The party sat down and did justice
to the fare set before them, as my father
said. Such was the manner and style of the
reception and departure of Governor Clinton
and his distinguished friends in Cleveland.”

The completion of the canal was enthu-
siastically celebrated hboth in Cleveland and
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Akron, but this general rejoicing was fol-
lowed by a long season of depression and
gloom, caused by the epidemics of typhoid
fever and maldtia the following summer and
autumn. This public calamity was supposed
to be occasioned by the digging of the canal
basin and the result was not only a widespread
depression of spirits, but an absolute *stag-
nation of business for several mouths. It
was mahy years pefore the horrors of this
season were even partiaily forgotten by the
eatly settlers of Cuyahoga county.

CLEVELAND CONTINUES 70 GROW. -

The population of Cleveland at the time of
the completion of the Ohio canal was about
500, and two vears afterward, on the 31st
of December, 1829, the legislature passed an
act extending the village boundaries' and add-
ing to the original town the land lying on the
river {from the sovtherly line of Huron street,
down siteam to a poilit just west of the junc-
tion of Vineyard lane with the road leading
to Brooklyn, thence wesi to the river and
down the river to the old village line. In
1834 those boundaries were further extended
by adding small tracts east of Krie street
and south of Ohio.

Croiera FEPIDEMICS.

Chicago and Cleveland were most seriously
affected by the epidemics of cholera which
visited several of the lake ports in 1832. The
famous Blackhawk war was then raging in the
territory which is now called Wisconsin and
in Northern Iliinois to the Mississippi river,
the garrison at Chicago had been massacred,
and, ahout June of that year, General Winfield
Scott was ordered to gather all the troops
available in the eastern forts and start in all
haste to the relief of Chicago, or Fort Dear-
born. He embarked with a full load of sol-
diers on the steamer “Henry Clay,” with Cap-
tain Nortonm in command. By the time the
boat arrived at Gratiot at the port of Take
Huron, it became apparent that it would be
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impossible to reachk Chicago by water. Gen-
eral Scott therefore landed his men, who were
in good physical condition, and sent the “Clay”
back to Buffalo.

REecEPTION OF Two CITIES.

Captain Norton started down the river with
his sick soldiers, but when he attempted to
_obtain food and medicine at Detroit, he found
the dock covered with armed men and cannoh,
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pier on the west bank of the river with a
flag of distress flying from his masthead.
The citizens of Cleveland had already heen
informed of the Detroit incident and knew
that their day of trial and danger had come,
but, instead of repelling the unwelcome vis-
itors at the mouth of the cannon, the trustees
of the village met immediately and deter-
mined that everything should be done, not only
to zid the cholera sufferers, but to protect their

CLEV-ELAND IN 1833, FROM THE COURTHOUSE LOOKING WEST.

and was obliged to proceed on his way to
Buffalo, Before the steamer arrived off the
port at Cleveland haif a dozen men had died
of cholera and had been thrown overhoard,
while others were seriously ill. As it was
evident to the captain that he would not
have enough men left to navigate the vegsel
to Buffalo, he steamed for Cleveland, and
“early in the morning of June 10, tied fast to a

own cilizehs. A quarantine was established
and a hospital provided for strangers who
came into the village, victims of the disease.
In spite of all these precautions the scourge
came, and for some time was quite destructive.
In three or four days after the “Henry Clay”
had been thoroughly fumigated, she left for
Buffalo. In the meantime the disease had
appeared in several scattered localities of the
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city, its victims not having heen exposed to
those suffering from the epidemic on ship-
board. Just how many persons of the vil-
lage were attacked is not known, but within
a fortnight, when the disease was most viru-
lent, some fifty or sixty Iatal cases were re-
ported. About the middle of October a cold
rain storm occurred, and soon afterward a
second cholera epidemic broke out most un-
expectedly. Fourteen men were seized and all
died within three days. No explanation could
he given as to the origin of this second out-
break, and there were only surmises as to
the cause of the first epidemic. In 1834 Cleve-
land suffered another visitation of cholera and
some deaths occurred in consequence. Al-
though there was no concerted action on the
part of Cleveland’s citizens to repel the “Henry
Clay,” it is known that not a few excited peo-
ple during the first epidemic of 1832 guarded
the shores of the lake both east and west,
armed with muskets, and with cannon planted
at various points, to prevent the landing of
any suspected vessels,

INcoRPGRATED A5 A Crry.

In March, 1836, an act was passed which
incorporated the city of Cleveland. This 6th
day of March, 1836, notwithstanding it
brought this honor to Cleveland, was not with-
out its feature of humiliation ; for its old-time
rival, Brooklyn, under the high sounding name
of the “City of Ohio,” suceeeded in attaining
municipal incorporation three days previous to
the realization of this ambition by Cleveland.
Thus the City of Ohio became a full-fledged
municipality March 3, 1836, while Cleveland
vet remained a village.

As provided in the latter’s act of incorpora-
tion, the village council of Cleveland ordered
an election of officers for the new city, to be
held on the 15th of April, 1836, and after 2
spirited canvass and the casting of 580 votes,
the following ticket was declared elected:
John W. Willey, mayor; Richard Hilliard,
Nicholas Dockstader and Joshua Mills, alder-
men; Morris Hepburn, John R. 5t. John,

HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

William V. Craw, Sherlock J. Andrews, Heary
i.. Noble, Edward Baldwin, Aaron T, Strick-
land, Horace Canfield and Archibald M. T.
Smith, councilmen.

The city had been divided into three wards,
the voting place for the first being in the court
house; that of the second, in the lower part
of the “Old Stone” church, at the corner of
the public square and Ontario street, and that
of the third ward in the old academy on S,
Clair street. Thus, as has heen rathér quaintly
observed, the faw, gospel and education fig-
ured prominénily in the first election of the
City of Cleveland. At the first meeting of

JOHN W. WILLEY.

the city council, which was held in the court
house, April 13, 1836, Sherlock J. Andrews
was clected president of the council and Hen-
ry B. Paine, city clerk and city solicitor.

First Mavor or CLEVELAND,

John W. Willey, Cleveland's first mayoft,
at the time he thus assumed honors as the
head of the municipality, was thirty-nine years
of age. He is described as a man of fine
appearance, of slender build, with a keen
mind and much eloquence, hoth natural and
trained. In view cf his abilitv and his profes-
sion, he was largely instrumental in framing
the constitution and by-laws of the future
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metropolis.  His duties were, in fact, both
strentious and varied. Ile was cbliged to sign
all commissions, leases and permits, and also
to try all criminal cases.” In the latter line
he assumed the usual duties of a justice of the
peace, his remuneration being the fees which
attached to his office. Mavor Willey was re-
elected as mayor in 1837 by a very large
majority, and he died June, 1841, while he was
holding the position of presiding judge of the
Fourteenth District.
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lake bank from caving and sliding, and as a
means of remuneration allewing them téo build
wharves and piers along the shore. It is not
known that anything definite was done under
this act, but afterward the city employed Col.
Charles Whittlesey, «. a large expense, to pile
certain portions of the lake front. Afterward
when the railroads were built they continued
this system of piling.
SHIPPING INTERESTS (1837). -
It is a matter of record that at this time

HAERBOR (from West Side of River) IN 1849,

Bhows government pier, side-wheel steamer ¢‘ Empire State,’’ light-house and
the Point; winding roadway leading to top of light-houge
bill, Light House street.

‘Frrst HarBor IMPROVEMENTS.

Cleveland had already made decided ad-
vances in its shipping interests and had also
commenced the permanent improvement of
dts river channel and harbor. The former had
been inaungurated on a small scale by the gen-
eral government as early as 1827, and the
first legislation introduced into the city council,
designed to protect the harhor, occurred in
January, 1837, when an ordinance was intro-
duced providing for its log breakwater. An
act was passed Incorporating the Lake Shore
Company ‘and authorizing them to protect the

Vol 1—281

(1837) Cleveland’s arrivals of lake marine, in-
cluding sloops, schooners and brigs, numbered
about 9oy, and the steamboats carrying both
freight and passengers, ggo. In 1337 com-
menced a short era of hard times, and from
that year until 1840 there was really no in-
crease in its population,

In November, 1830, Cleveland also received
a set-back in its first destructive fire—which
consumed Quthwaite’s soap factory and other
important plants of that day. Tt was, in fact,
the first fire which destroyed any considerable
section of its’ manufacturing districts.
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InDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL REVIVAL.

By 1840, when the population of the city
was over ©,000, Cleveland began to revive
from the effects of the panic, fire and all other
untoward influences.
were establisbed, shipbuilding showed a
marked improvement, and in 1845 a decided
impetus was given to her commerce by the
opening up oi the famous Brier Hill coal
mines in Mahoning county. In the previous
vear also the Lake Superior region of iron
ore was first discovered, from a commercial
standpoint, Thus two of Cleveland’s main
sources of commercial importance and prog-
ress were first tapped, and to this day the
receipts of iron ore from the regions of the
northwest, and the shipment of coal from the
fields of the central west, constitute perhaps
her main claims to commercial greatness.

Frrst TeLeGRAPE OFFICE.

On September 135, 1847, the Lake Erie Tele-
graph Company was permitted to run s wires
through the city of Cleveland, and on Sep-
tember 15, of that year, its first telegraph office
was opened.

Proneer Ratnwavs.

It was not until 1850, when the city’s pop-
ulation was something over 17,000, that the
first successful railroad was placed in opera-
tion. On March 16, of that year, its city offi-
cials enjoyed a ride over the first completed
section of the Cleveland, Columbus and Cin-
cinnati Railroad. Fiiteen miles were covered
in twenty-seven minutes, and, very appropri-
ately, the locomotive which drew the car con-
taining the distinguished guests was named the
“Cleveland.” A banguet at the city’s leading
hotel followed this historic trip, and during
the festivities it was pleasantly remarked that
the locomotive referred to, was the only “mo-
tive” that could induce a man to leave Cleve-
land.

It must not be inferred that efforts had
not previously been made to establish rail-
ways in Cuyahoga county. As early as 1834

New iron institutions -
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the matter had been so earnestly agitated thay -
the Cleveland & Newburg railroad was finally
built, This “iron way™ consisted of but four
miles of strap-rails, connecting the Cleveland
pttblic square with a stone quarry in Newburg
township, and, after being used nearly four
years, was abandoned. About the same time
the legislature incorporated six other railway
companies, only one of which, the Ohio Rajl-
road, succeeded in accomplishing any building.
This line was built on piles and was therefore
known as the “stilt road,” but after heing
partially constructed westward from Chia
City, the constructing and operating company
completely collapsed, . leaving hehind only
heavy liabilities and an opposing array of rot-
ten piles.

With the completion of the Cleveland, Co-
lumbus and Cincinnati railroad, in’ 1850, and
the opening to traffic and travel of the Cleve-
land, Painesville and Ashtabula railroad, in
1852, the modern transportation facilities of
the city were firmly established, and from that
time may be said to date the municipality of
today.

Amnsorss Onio Crry.

In the formation of the city of Cleveland,
as we know it today, the first great accession
of territory was caused by its absorption of
its old rival, Ohio City. This event occurred
in 1854, the terms of annexation being signed
on June sth of that year. H., V. Wilson and
Franklin F. Bacchus were the representatives
of Cleveland and William B. Castle and
Charles L. Rhodes, of the City of Ohio. The
latter municipality passed the required ordi-
nance on the sth, and the city of Cleveland
carried a similar ordinance through its coun-
cil on the following day. The public debt of
the City of Ohio was assumed by Cleveland,
with the exception of its lability for bonds
issued to pay its subscription to the Junction
Railroad Company. The city of Cleveland
had previously subscribed to the stock of a
number of railroads and, according to the pro-
visions of the agreement hetween it and the
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City of Ohio, the new corporation was author-
ized to expend the money it might realize from
this source in the improvement of public parks
or for other public purposes. Cleveland raised
a large surplus from the sale of its land north
of Bath street, on the lake shore, to furnish
the right-of-way for the early railroads which
entered the city. The income [rom these
sotfrces created a fund of about $1,700,000,
and in 1862 the legislature passed an act call-
ing intc existence a board of commissioners
1o take charge of this fund. This is one of
the extremely rare instances in the civic his-
-tory of the United States where a city has
devived permanent financial advantages from
its railroad investments.

TERRITORIAL EXPANsSION or CITY. -

The new city increased quite rapidly from
1854 to 1860, the census of the latter year
showing a population of 43.838. The terri-
torial annexation of Cleveland, after its ab-
sorption of Ohio City, commenced in Febru-
ary, 1864, when a portion of Brooklyn lying
north of Walworth run was brought into the
corporation, and three years thereafter
another portion of Brooklyn, as well as a
part of Newburg township, was annexed.
This addition of corporate territory extended
the line of the city westwardly to the old lim-
its of the City of Ohio on the lake shore, and
embraced a large tract of land south of the
Tatter.

In December, 1869, another large section
of Newburg township was annexed, but the
population of Cleveland was not materially
increased thereby, the chief stimulus to the
city being to its industries. The general cen-
sus of 18706 indicated a population of 92,829,
and in 1872 a portion of the village of East
Cleveland, and further additions from the
townships of Brooklyn and Newburg were
made to the growing population. In the fol-
Towing vear a large part of the remaining
_portion of Newburg township was annexed,
thereby extending the city limits beyond the
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crossing of the old Newbhurg railroad and
the Cleveland and Pittsburg line.

By December, 1873, the entire village of
Newburg had been absorbed by Cleveland.
On June 27, 1892, the remaining tertitory of
East Cleveland was annexed to the city. and
on Mbarch 5, 1895, West Cleveland also.lost
its identity as a village. In the same year,
April 30, Brooklyn village was absotbed. In
December, 1903, the village of Linndale be-
came a part of the city of Cleveland, and in
1905 the remaining territory from Newburg
township and the village of South Brooklyn
were absorbed, thus completing the present
municipal boundaries toward the south. In
the same year the village of Glenville, located
on the shores of the lake toward the northeast,
voted to become a portion of the great corpo-
ration, and in 1910 the last addition to Cleve-
land’s territory was made, when the beauti-
ful suburb of Collinwood was absorbed.

By this last anmexation, four square miles
were added to the area of Cleveland, and her
educational strength was increased by the
addition of one fine high school and four
grammar schools. It is probable that the next
addition of territory will be the remainder
of East Cleveland toward the northeast and
the suburh of Lakewood toward the northwest.

Although there is considerable local opposi-
tion on the part of these suburbs toward an-
nexation, it is likely that the rapid growth
of the greater city and the logic of events will
bring about their absorption.

INCREASE 1IN POPULATION.

The census of 1830 showed that Cleveland
had a population of 160,146. Tts population,
in 18go, was 261,353, and 381,768 in Igoo.
In 1909 the estimate made by the census bu-
reatt was 506,038. As the population of Cleve-
land has increased on an average of 10,000
annually, during the last four years, it is safe

-t say that at present there are nearly 520,000

people within its forty-two square miles of
territory.
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. S. SENATORS FROM THE COUNTY.

Men who have served Ohio as United States
senators from Cuyahoga county are Stanley
Griswold, Henrv B. Payne, Marcus A. Hanna
and Theodore E, Burton.

CONGRESSIONAL REPRESENTATIVES.

Those who have represented this district in

Congress are as below: .

1803-1812, Jeremiah Morrow, Warren
county.

1813-1814, John S. Edwards died before
taking seat; Trumbull county.

1813-1814, Rezin Beall, Wayne county.

1813-1814, David Clendenen, Trumbull
county.

1815-1816, David Clendenen, Truambull
county.

1817-1818, Peter Hitcheock, GGeauga county,

181¢-1822, John Sloan, Wayne county.

1823-1833, Elisha Whittlesey, Trumbull
county.

1833-1836, Jonathan Sloas, Portage county.

1837-1840, John W. Allen, Cuyahoga
county.

1841-1842, Sherlock J. Andrews, Cuyahoga
county,

1843-1853, Joshua R. Giddings, Ashtabula.
county;

1853-1860, Edward Wade, Cuyahoga
county., )

1861-1862, Albert G. Riddle, Cuyahoga
county,

18563-1868, Rufus P. Spaulding, Cuyahoga
county.

1869-1872, Wm. H., Upson, Summit county.

1873-1875, Richard C. Parsons, Cuyahoga
county.

1875-1876, Henry B. Payne, Cuyahoga
county.

1877-1882, Amos Townsend, Cuyahoga
county.

1883-1888, Martin Foran, Cuyahoga county.

1889-18g0, Theodore E. Burton, Cuyahoga
county. ‘

18go-18g2, Tom L. Johnson, Cuyahoga

cotnty.

1803-1804, Tom L. Johnson,
county.

1805-1909, Theodore E. Burton, Cuyahoga
county.,

1909-

Pusric ScHOOLS SYSTEMATIZED.

Cuyahoga

James Cassidy, Cuyahoga county.

The commencement of popular education
in the city of Cleveland has already been
briefly mentioned, but her schools, like those
of other cities in Ohio, were not really sys-
tematized until the adoption of the constitution
of 1851. The grand work of the system was,
however, laid in the early thirties, chiefly
through the exertion and abilities of John W.
Willey, afterward mayor of Cleveland, and
Harvey Rice, the latter of whom lived to see
the public schools of his city and state OIaced
on a broad and enduring basis,

Tn 1830-31 Mr. Willey was a member of
the Senate and Mr. Rice of the House of Rep-
resentatives, and they were the acknowledged
leaders in the promotion of the measure which
became a law, authorizing the sale of lands
in the Western Reserve for the support of its
public schools. Mr, Willey drew up the bill
and Mr. Rice was appointed agent to sell the
lands. The amount thus realized was about
$150,000, which was loaned to the state and
the interest paid to the counties of the West-
ern Reserve, according to the enumeration of
children of school age in each county.

The state constitution of 1851 made it the
duty of the general assembly to “make such
provision by taxation, or otherwise, as with
the ircome atising from the school trust fund
will secure a thorough and sufficient system
of common schools throughout the state.

Harvey Rice AND THE ScuEoon. FuND.

Mr. Rice thus describes his participation
in the formation of this fund, which really
laid the foundation of the public school system
of the entire state of Ohio. “In 1830 I drifted
into politics, and was elected representative to
the lepisiature. Near the close of the session
I was appointed agent by that honorable body
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to sell the Western Reserve school lands, some
fifty thousand acres, located in Holmes and
Tuscarawas counties. I opened a land office
at Millersburg, in Holmes county. The law
allowed me 3 per cent on cash receipts for
my services. In the first five days I received
from sales at public auction fifty thousand dol-
lars, 'and my percentage amounted to fifteen
hundred dollars. This sudden windfall made
me, 1 then thought, almost a millicnaire. It
was my first pecuniary success in life, and the
first time, after a Japse of eight years, that
I became able to pay my college tuition, for
which I had given my promissory note.” In
1852 Mr. Rice was appointed chajrman of the
commtittee of schools of the state serate, and
on March 29 of that year introduced the bili
to provide for. the reorganization and main-
tenance of common schools, as provided by the
constitution. Among other members of the
convention were Peter Hitchcock, Jacob Per-
kins and R. P. Ranney, representatives from
Trumbull and Geauga, and Sherlock J. An-
drews and Reuben Hitcheock, from Cuyahoga
county. :

BioGgraruy or Harvey RICE.

At this peint, it is appropriate to- make
hearty mention of the splendid services of
Harvey Rice in the cause of popular education
and to briefly state the facts of his life. As
collated from his own auto-bidgraphy, he was
born at Conway, Massachusetts, June 11, 1800.
He was of New England and Puritanic an-
cestiy and had the misfortune, when he was
but four years of age, to lose his mother. Soon
afterward, his father discontinued house-keep-
ing and placed the little boy in the care of
strangers, and, as Mr. Rice says, “Instead
of being brought up with parental care, I
brought myself up, and educated myself at
Williams College, where I graduated in 1824,
and then went west.” He traveled from
Williamstown to Buffalo by stage coach and
canal boat. His trip to Cleveland was made
by way of Lake Erie in a schooner, and after
a rough voyage of three days the boat cast

anchor off the bank of the Cuyahoga river on
September 24, 1824. At that time the entire
population of Cleveland did not exceed four
hundred.

Mr, Rice states that he came to this new
town with no other weapons than a letter of
introduction to a leading citizen, and a college
diploma printed in Latin, which authorized
him to claim the collegiate title of A. B. Thus
armed, the second day of his arrival he se-
cured the position of teacher and principal
of the old Cleveland academy, which was
afterward used as headquarters for the fire de-
partment of the city. In the spring of 1826
the young man resigned his position in the
academy and went to Cincinnati, where he
continued the study of the law with Bellamy
Storer. Disappointed in his expectations of
being able to sustdin himself during his stud-
ies by teaching a classical school, he deter-
mined to take passage on the “Gallipolis,” a
steamboat whose ultimate destination was
Pittsburg. Instead of going to that city, he
remained at Gallipolis for some time, teaching
English grammar and delivering lectures on
that subject, and then returned to Cleveland
where he was admitted to the bar. He com-
menced the practice of his profession in part-
nership with his friend, Reuben Wood, who
afterward became chief justice and governor
of the state. In the course of a few months
he married, and paid the poor clergyman, for
his services, the last penny which he possessed
in the world.

As he philosophically remarked many years
afterward, “This left me penniless, but T
thought a wife at that price cheap encugh.
She proved to be a jewel above price. Soon
after my marriage T was employed by a gen-
tleman, who had tired of the ‘silken tie’ that
bound him, to obtain for him a divorce. If
I succeeded, he agreed to pay me a hundred
dollars. T did succeed, and in the evening of
the same day the divorce was granted, he mat-
ried another woman, The fee I received en-
abled me to comumence housekeeping.”

" Mr. Rice served as clerk of county courts
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from 1833 to 1840. As stated, he accom-
plished his great work in the cause of ¢om-
mon school education during the early fifties.
During the succeeding forty vears his accom-
plishments for the general public good were
beyond measme. In 1871 Williams College
conferred on him the honorary degree of Doc-
tor of Laws. During many of the later years
of his long and eventful life, Mr. Rice was
the president and moving spirit of the Farly
Settlers’ Association of Cuvahoga County.
His death occurred on the #th of November,
18¢1, in the ninety-second vear of his age.
The public schools of Cleveland, whose
pragress and present excellence so largely
rest on the efforts of Mr. Rice, now consist
of seéven high schools and more than ninety
grammar schools; about 1,000 teachers and
55,000 pupils. Over $2,000,000 annually is the
amount expended on the causé of public edu-
cation in this. great city. The public school
property is valued at about $8,500,000.

. Epucarronarn ITEMS.

Cleveland was incorporated as a village in
1814. This corporation owned a school house
of its own In the winter oi 1816. It stood
on St. Clair street, next the present Kanard.
It was built of logs, and was 24 by 30 feet,
inside dimensiong, One of its extremes was
occupied by fireplace and chimney; the other,
enlivened by two windows of twelve lights
each, placed high; its front side, neatly set
in a frame of railfence, was similarly glazed
and had a door in addition.

Sarah Doane taught the first Cleveland
school in 1800.

Irene Hickex, whose ability as a teacher
was noted in the Trumbull county chapter,
after having studied in the east and finishing
her teaching in Warren, opened a girl’s school
on Superior street, between the American
House and the Public Square. Miss Sara
Fitch and women of her condition and family
attended Miss Hickox’s school. She married
Joel Scranton and kept house on Bank street
for a time afterwards, moving onto a farm
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not far from the village. This part of town
was later known as Scranton’s flats.

TLucretia Rudolph was one “of the memor-
able 10z students attending the eclectic insti-
tute at Iliram, Ohio, during its first term.”
She attended this institution for five years,
was a splendid student; taught in the Cleve-
land schools, Bronell street, primary depart-
mettt. '

\i CreveLann’s Hicm Scmoors.

Governor McKinley once said that “Cléve-
land established the first high school ever
established beneath our flag.” He referred to

its Central High School, founded in 1846 and-

opened in the basement of the Universalist
church. It was established to accommodate
the more populeus and enterprising East Side,
and, in 1855, a few months after the annexa-
tion of Ohio City, a free high school was or-
ganized for that section, the West Side.

The interesting history of these two pioneer
high schools of Cleveland is given in the fol-
lowing extract from a paper prepared by David
P. Simpson, West Side High School (class
of '87), a few days previous to the alumni re-
union of June 17, 1910:

“It is said that the first school of any kind
in Cleveland was founded when there were
three families, with five children all told, in
the city. This school was, of course, before
the days of school taxation, and so not, prop-
erly speaking, a public school. TPublic senti-
ment in 1821, however, demanded a building
for school purposes, and the Cleveland Acad-
emy was the result. This again was not a
public school. Not until 1836 did such a
school appear, the same year in which Cleve-
land was incorporated as a city. Children con-
tinued to come to Cleveland and a school
board was organized and a school tax levied
to care for their educational upbringing.

Hica Scmoor NEEDED.

“As time passed the need of higher educa-
tion became apparent, and in 1844, Charles
Bradburn, a member of the board of educa-
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tion, urged the construction of a school build-
ing where ‘algebra, geometry, mechanical phi-
losophy, political economy and the many other
branches of useiul knowledge' might be
tanght. This initial effort of Mr. Bradburn
failed, and though he was insistent in season
and out of season, it was not until 1846 that
Mr. Bradburn’s proposal, now enjoying the
active approval and support of Mayor Hoadly,
was carried into effect. This gave Cleveland
the first public high school in the state of
Ohio, and that school was called Central High
school, and was first located in the basement
of the Universalist church that was later con-
verted into the Homeopathic Medical College.
This project for free high school education
met with determined opposition on the part
of many well-to-do people who could afford
to educate their children out of their own
private means. - The masses of the people and
their leaders were just as determined on their
side, and after mass meetings and lobbying
trips to Columbus the friends: of the free
high school were successiul. Later the lot
now occupied by the Citizens Savings and
Trust Conipany, for which that company paid
$310,000 a dozen years ago, was purchased
for $5,000, and here the Central High school
was housed after temporary sojourns in a
wooden building and in the Prospect street
school building until the erection of its pres-
ent huilding on East Fifty-fifth street became
a necessity, and the schoo!l family moved out,
leaving its building to be used for many years
as Cleveland’s puhlic library.

“All the above is necessary to a proper
understanding of the conditions out of which
the West High school grew. It will be well
to remember, also, that the East Side in those
early days, as is the case at present, had a
larger population than what we now call the
West Side, (Ohio City was the name applied
to the West Side down until June, 1854, in
which year the sunset side of the city was

amnexed to Cleveland.) The greater and more”

rapid growth of the East 3ide, or Cleveland,
had a very simple reasoi.
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Qrp Sceoon Usep as DWELLING.

“The Indian titles to land were carlier and
mmore easily quieted on the east bank of the
Cuyahoga than on the western side, and so set-
tlement got a good start east of the river,
and has maintained its lead ever since. But
though Ohio City did not have so many people
nor so many children as Cleveland, she never-
theless had between two and three thousand
children of school age, of whaom about a thou-
sand were attending school. At the time of
annexation, i. e., it 1854, there were grammar
schools on Penn, Vermont and Church streets,
one in a church building and ene in the so-
called Seminary building, the last building
being still standing. It is in West Forty-fifth
street, near Detroit avenue, and is used for
dwelling purposes by several families. Ohio
City in 1854 was also engaged in constructing
brick school buildings on Pearl, Kentucky and
Hicks streets, and so conditions were being
created which would soon call for a high
school on the West Side, for grammar schools
graduate their pupils and the ‘what next’
question at once suggests a high school.

“It should be recalled at this point, too, that
since 1849, there had been what we should
now call, with our perfect classification, a non-
descript school in the old Seminary building.
Tt was ‘betwixt and between,’ for it was doing
work in advance of the average grammar
school, but not on a level with that of a high
school. It was known as a senior school, and
since 1852 had been in charge of Mr. A, G.
Hopkinson. Mr. Hopkinson was a wide-
awake Yankee scholar, and cone of the few
among the early West Siders characterized by
a community parental instinct always so
marked on the other side of the river.

Hoprinson Gains Pornt.

“Mr. A. G. Hopkinson watched the plans
for the erection of the Central Iligh school
with prudently jealous eye. His senior school,
now occupying part of the Kentucky school,
had among its members some pretty good stu-
dents, thought My, Hopkinson, and if the East
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Side was to have a high scheol, he said the
West Side should have one, too, and that he
knew the reason why. When the statement
was made that the state law authorizing the
Central High school authorized only a school
and not schools in the plural number, the path
now so profitable to corporation lawyers was
followed and the propdsal made that Cleve-
land should abide by, and at the same time
dodge, the law of the state, and have only
one high school, but that a ‘branch’ of said one
high school should be erected on the West
Side. Mr. Hopkinson gain‘ed his point and
had his pupils take the examinations nec-
essary to prove their gualifications, and, if my
memory serves me right, orly one out of the
two or three dozen applicants failed to pass
the test. The ‘Branch’ High school in name,
but the reaily independent West High school
in fact, thus came into being in 1855, was
housed in the Kentucky street school building
and had as its first principal A. G. Hopkinson,
to whose indefatigable endeavor it owes its
existence.

“Prior to that time no free school of high
school grade existed on the west side of the
city, and the history of West High school
properly begins with 1835,

“Great conscientiousness characterized Mr,
Hopkinson’s long term of service as principal
Many memoranda written in the school reg-
ister in Mr. Hopkinson’s handwriting and fol-
lowed by his signature tend to show this, and
they also reveal other interesting things con-
nected with the life of the school. Under date
of January 4, 1858, I find the following:
‘Neither absent nor tardy, except on one vcea-
sion, when, if our clock was right (Mr. Hop-
kinson was of sterling Yankee stock), I was
one minute late.

“Barring slight absences because of illness,
Mr. Hopkinson continued at the head of the
school, if I am correctly informed, until 1872,
whent health conditions required a change of
occupation. From that date he devoted him-
seif to the insurance business, in which son
and grandson have followed him, and contin-
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ued to interest himself in the welfare
West Side and Cleveland until his de:
18g6. Many high school principals
served Cleveland, but none more faithft

“In 1861 the West High scheol and its
cipal moved to their new home, at the
ner of State and Ann streets, and fach
Clinton street. In 1880 the average dai
tendance at the West High school was
and as Hicks, Tremont, Walton and
tucky school continued to pour in pupils,
ident J. D. Jones, of the school boarc
ported as follows: ‘The West High s
very much needs better accommodatior
has been proposed to purchase additional
adjoining the high school property and
construet additional buildings. Another -
osition is to remove the location of the s
further from the business portion of the
Whatever is done, there is need of some w
action in the matter.’

Scuoor Location Moven.

“The board, however, had afready exce
the legal tax limit and nothing was domne
mediately, but such a condition cannot
fail of attention, and consequently thos
us who had attended the ‘Old® West |
school at State and Clinton streets move
the fall of 1885 to what we then called
New” West High, at the corner of Bridge
Randall streets, which did service as such
1902, when it was given over to the teac
and students of the Normal Training scl
It underwent another transfer again a
of so ago when it was remodeled and f
up as the home of the High School of C
merce. ’

O~E LARGE ASSEMBLY RooM.

“This building, at the corner of what
now call Bridge avenue and Randall road,
constructed at a cost of from $65,000 to §
000 and contained fourteen session rooms
one large assembly room. The assen
room, however, was tsed in a manner 3
different from the way ir which the assen
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room had been used in the ‘Old’ West High
'school. At the latter place, as previously
intimated, the pupils spent their time in the
assembly room unless called away to smaller
roomts by recitations. When Central Iigh
school went into its new huilding on Wilson
avenue, in 1878, this plan was no longer fol-
lowed, -for the pupils were put in various
session rooms, from forty to fifty in each,
each room being in charge of a so-called ses-
sion room teacher, who kept track of his
room pupils and also taught his classes as
they came to him, made up of pupils from
other rooms as well as his own. Similarly
his own pupils would go from his room to the
rooms of other teachers for purposes of reci-
tation. This plan did away with the confusion
of the large assemblage of pupils in the big
assernbly_room and reduced disciplinary diffi-
culties in many ways.

“This same plan of many session rooms and
one large assembly room, or auditorium, was
followed in the building at Bridge and Ran-
dall, and pupils went to the assembly room
only on special occasions or for the more or
less regular weekly rhetorical exercises.

“In the meantime, the school had been out-
growing its quarters in the ‘new’ school. New
feeders were flooding it with students. Clark,
Waverly, Gordon, Willard and other city
schools, together with West Cleveland’s
schools, becoming a part of the city school
system, made so by annexation of West Cleve-
land, were now demanding admission for their
graduates. Double sessions helped for a time.
So a building on Vestry street gave tempo-
rary relief, but pressure was not really re-
moved until the building of Lincoln High
school in 18g9-1go1. Lincoln prevented West
High from becoming a school of central pro-

portions and also look a number of its faculty

members.
PresEnT BUILDING. -

“The erection of the Lincoln High schoot
could not remove the crying need of West
High for larger and more commodious guar-
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ters. A site was chosen on the edge of the
great ‘Gordon pasture, on Franklin avenue,
west of Gordon avenue, now called West Six-
ty-fifth street. The present writer recalls go-
ing with other grammar school boys to the
very spot on which the building stands and
removing the virgin turf in the laying out
of a base hall diamond for the ‘Quicksieps’
or some other equally celebrated team of those
days. To the present huilding on that site,
Mr. Johaston, the principal with the longest
term of service, removed with his pupils and
teachers in 190z, and it is in this structure, at
Franklin avenue and West Sixty-ninth street,
that the coming reunion, or so-called diamond

- jubilee—but let us recall that as a properly

organized high school, West High is really
only fifty-five years old-—in this building the
coming reunion will take place.”

M=s. AveEry—>ScuHooL Boarp WoMEN. .

Mrs. Catherine H. T. Avery is the wife of
Elrov McKenvree Avery. They were both
born in Michigan, and were married in 1870,
She was a teacher of good standing, and early
in the history of the Daughters of the Ameri-
can Revolution became interested in it. When
Ohio passed its school law, she was nominated
by the Republicans for the position of member
of the board of education; elected and served
acceptably two vears. From that time to this
Cleveland has always had at least one woman
on the school board. Mrs. Benj. F. Taylor,
widow of the poet, was elected in 1896 and
served six years, Mrs. May C. Whitaker was
elected in 1902 and served two vears. Mrs.
A E. Hyre was elected in 1904 and is still
serving.

Mrs, Avery has alwavs taken an active part
in these school elections, and is a splendid
campaigner. She is at present serving as
president of the board of school examiners.
That women could occupy this place was due
to the women who came on to, the school
board. The anpomtment was first made by
the director, butl now it is made by the school
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board. (Ohio gassed a law for the appoint-
ment of women on the board of public libra-
ries, and Mrs. Avery was appointed to fill that
place. Some interpretation has been put on
the law which does not make it mandatory,
and there is no one serving in that capacity.

PorrLar EpvucartioN 1N THE COUNTY.

The total number of school districts in Cuy-
ahoga county is 147, divided as follows: town-
ships, 16; sub-districts, 12; and separate dis-
tricts, 19. Throughout the county are twenty
high schools and 247 elementary schools,
taught by 2,240 teachers, 192 of whom are
men. The total valuation of school property
is nearly $10,000,000.

'

WESTERN REeseErVE UNIVERSITY.

Among the institutions of higher learning
most widely known are the Western Reserve
University, Case School of Applied Science
and St. Ignatius College. Altogether, there
are in Cleveland thirty colleges and profeg-
sional schools.

The Western Reserve University had its
origin in the Erie Literary Society, which
was incorporated in 1803
tablished as the Burton academy, in Geauga
county, and during 1822-24 was ¢onducted by
the Presbyteries of Grand River and Portage,
in partial union with the Erie Literary Soci-
ety. Until June 24 of the latter vear it was
nnder the jurisdiction of these two presby-
teries, when a new union was formed with
the preshytery of Huron. In February, 1826,
the school was incorporated and in the fol-
lowing year opened at Hudson, Summit
county. In the year 1830 Amasa Stone, of
Cleveland, offered $500,000 to bring the West-
ern Reserve University to that city, provided
its name should be changed to Adelbert Col-
lege of Western Reserve University, the name
being given in memory of his deceased som,
Adelbert Stone. Mr. Stone’s proposition was
accepted i September, 1881, and a site for the
college chosen between Euclid and Cedar ave-

Later it was es- |
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nues, the grounds facing Wade park. M.
Stone’s endowment of $500,000 comprised
$150,000 for a building and $350,000 for gz
permanent fund. Two buildings had already
been erected on the new location, and in 188,
Adelbert college was formally thrown open tq
the public. Since that year there have been-
added a physical laboratory, erected by Sam-
uel Mather, a library building by Henry R,
Hatch, and a Young Men‘s Christian Asgo-
ciation building by Flenry B. Eldred. The
distinct departments of the Western Reserve
University comprise Adelbert college, College
for Women, Graduate department, Medica]
college, Law school and Dental school. The
Medical college, established for the education
of the so-called Regulars of the profession in
1884, is situated at the corner of Erie and
St. Clair streets and includes property valued
at some $300,000. The College for Women
was founded in 1888 and has its special fac-
ulty, the courses being equal in every respect
to the curriculum of Adelbert college. The
Graduate department is also strongly main-
tained, its courses leading to the degrees of
Master of Arts and Doctor of Philosophy,
The Franklin T. Bacchus law school of West-
ern Reserve University was founded in 1892,
its large stone building being situated across
Adelbert street from the college campus.

In moving the Burten Academy, excuse was
given that Burton was not healthy and the
men appointed fo consider a new place were
recommended to look up Burton, Cleveland,
Hudson, Euclid and Aurora. Burton was a
high town, probably the most healthful of all
and it seems strange that the end of this
college should have been Cleveland, which
point was the least healthiul at that time. Of
course, like all colleges at Hudson, it needed
money, and up to 1880 had little more than
$2,000, with Cellege buildings worth $40,000.
The preparatory schecl was left at Hudson
until 1903. From 1872 until 1888 women were
admitted to this college. At Hudson, girls
were few.

The writer remembers the ungenilemanly
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way in which Hudson College men spoke of
girl students. In one class particolarly the state-
ment ‘was made, “we have seventeen gradu-
ates and two girls.,” Despite this fact, girls
continted to apply for admission, and aifer
the college was established in Cleveland twen-
ty per cent of the students were women. At
this time the college was not very prosperous.
Undergraduates objected to the presence of
women and the inactivity of the college was
laid somewhat to women’s doors. The truth
was that new professors were needed, and at
the time the institution ceased to be co-edu-
cational a new president was elected with
good results. The Woman's College was
opened in 1888. John Hay and Mrs, Amasa
Stone made a liberal donation. In 18gg Mrs.
James IF. Clark gave $1oo,0c0, and a Woman's
College was a reality.

The main library of the university contains
ahout 50,000 volumes, but its thousand stu-
dents have also the free use of the Cleveland
public library and the Casé library, numbering
respectively about 150,000 and 60,000 volumes.
Since 18go 'this great educational institution
has been served as president by Dr. Charles
F. Thwing, he being at the head of a splendid
faculty of over two hundred instructors.

Case ScrooL oF APPLIED SCIENCE.

The Case School of Applied Science was
founded by Leonard Case, of Cleveland, whose
name is also closely associated with all educa-
tional and philanthropic enterprises of the For-
est City. In 1877 this public benefactor set
apart the lands which formed the first per-
manent éndowment in the establishment of
this scientific school of national repute. Ten
vears later thie preliminary work of instrue-
in 1885 the school was removed to a site
tion was begun in Mr, Case’s own home, but
on Euclid avenue, opposite Wade park. The
degree of Bacheler of Science is conferred,
tpont the completion of any of the regulaf
courses of study; an additional year earns the
student the degree of Master of Science, and
special degrees are also served in civil, me-
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chanical and mining engineering. The school
has a remarkably high reputation for thor-
oughness, its faculty consisting of Dr. Charles
S. Howe, as president, and nine full professors
and twenty-five assistants. The number of
students is about 450. Closely identified witl
the good work of the school is the Case li-
brary, which is installed in the Caxton building
and contains, as stated, about 60,000 volumes.
This well-selected collection of books origi-
nated in 1846, the library being named after
Leonard Case, the founder of the school. Inm
1859 the original collection was consolidated
with the libraries of the Young Men's Library
Association and the Cleveland Library Asso-
ciation, and since 1876 has been known under
its present name. It is estimated that the
property valuation of the Case scheol 1s over
$2,000,000. ) :
The Case Scientific School was the result
of the desire of TLeonard Case, Sr., and his
two sons, William and Lecnard, to establish
such a school. William and his father died
before this was carried out and the duty was
left to Leonard. Although a great student
himself, he believed that literature culture
ought to be supplanted by schools where prac-
tical things were taught, because, as the coun-
try advanced, mechanics would have to be
educated. In 1877 the preliminary steps for
the foundation of this school were carried
out, IMe died in 1880 and Henry G. Abbey
carried out his designs.. In 1831 the. school
really began in the Case homestead, and in
1885 it occupied its new building near Adel-
bert College, since which time it has gradu-
ally increased. Laura Kerr Axtell and her
brother, Eli Kerr, had inherited a goodly sum
of money from Leonard Case, and the former
deeded back one-Half of her interest on her
death to the Case school. She also gave
$50,000 outright. This school has grown in
importance and there is now hardly a hamlet
on the Western Resetve from which some
boy has not found his way to the Case schoot
and thence to a good position in the world.
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Sr, Ienativs COLLEGE.

Like all similar institutions under the con-
trol of the Society of Jesus, 5t. Ignatius Col-
lege, of Cleveland, has always maintained a
high reputation for good discipline and su-
perior instruction. It was opened in 1836 and
incorporated in 18go. Its curriculum provides
for a classical course of study covering six
vears, after which the student receives a diplo-
ma of graduation, and an additional year in
mental philosophy secures him the degree of
A. B. A distinguishing feature of this col-
lege is its meteorclogical and sesmic ohserva-
tory, under the direction of Rev. Frederick
Odenbach, S. J., who has a wide and enviable
scientific reputation, and is establishing a re-
markably thorcugh and almost unique colle-
giate department in connection with earth-
quakes and other sesmic disturbances. The
entire number of students in the college is
now about 350.

CLeEvELaNp MericaL COLLEGE.

Besides the medical college mentioned, as
2 department of the Western Reserve Uni-
vessity, the Cleveiand Medical College (Ho-
meopathic) has existed for years. This is a
consolidation of the Cleveland Medical Col-
lege and the Cleveland University of Medicine
and Surgery. Of special prominence in the
cause of higher education should also be men-
tioned the Hathaway Brown school, and Ursu-
line academy and the Cleveland Normal Train-
ing School.

Tur PusLic Lisrary.

Established in 1867, it was named the Cleve-
land Public School Library in 1883. In 1873
it was first housed in a block on the south
side of Superior street; was two years in the
Claric bwilding on Superior street; and in
1885 removed to the City Hall, where it re-
mained four vears, when it went into the Old
High School building on Euclid avenue, now
occupied by the Citizens Savings and Trust
Company. In the spring of 1901, when the
building was sold, the books were stored until
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the fall, when a temporary place was made
for them on Rockwell and East Third street.
In 1898 bonds to the amount of $250,000 were
sold for the ersction of the permanent library
building, but the plans were not carried be-
cause the library wished to be in the group
plan. In the meantime the building was ineffi-
cient, the departments being in different places.
There has heen some rélief in the establish-
ment of the branch libraries, but still it is
hoped that some way may be found before
long to build an adequate handsome building.

The Woodland avenue branch came into ex-
istence in 1004; St Claire branch in I1G0;5;
Broadway branch in 1906; Miles park branch
in 1906; Hough avenue branch in 1goy; West
side branch in 18gz; South side branch in
18g7, and South Brooklyn branch in 1gog.
There are now fifteen in all, Andrew Car-
negie has given $466,000 for the building of
various branches and has offered $83,000
more; Rockefeller has given $40,000 for the
huilding adjoining Alta House, on East One
Hundred and Twenty-fifth street. Cleveland
is the eighth city in the United States, but fifth
as library center.

The history of the library work in Cleve-
land would All a volume by itself, and William
H. Brett deserves untold credit for his splen-
did management of the syvstem. He is not only
thoughtful of the wants of the pecple of the
city, but is suggestive and helpful to the
libraries in the surrourding towns.

WesTtERN REsErRvE HIsToricarn SocieTy.

Mr. Albion Morris Dyer, curator of the
Western  Reserve Historical Secietv. iu
“Orth’s History of Cleveland,” gives many in-
teresting facts in regard to this society. He
says that it had its origin in the Cleveland
Library Society and was incorporated ahout
the middle of the last century. It owes its
origin legally to Case library. :

Charles C. Baldwin is responsible largely for
the organization of the Historical Society.
“While an officer and trustee of the Cleve-
land Library Association he formed a plan



HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

of having departments devoted to these stud-
ies, with especial charge of searching out,
collecting and preserving relics, documents,
and other materials associated with these great
changes in the nature and order of things
about him.” Judge Baldwin was supporied
by Colonel Whittlesey. These plans were un-
folded at a meeting in April, 1867. The his-
torical part of the library was thus established
and ordered to be placed in the Society of the
Savings building, By-laws were adopted, the
first rule fixing the name, the Western Reserve
Historical Society, and defining the object of
the society: “To discover, to procure and
preserve whatever relates to the history, biog-
raphy, genealogy, antiquities and statistics con-
nected with the city of Cleveland and the
Western Reserve, and generally what relates
to the history of Ohio and the great west.”
Donations immediately began to come in.
Colonel Whittlesey was chosen president and
served until his death in 1836,

CoroxeL CrarrEs WHITTLESEY.

No one person has ever heen connected
longer, or more prominently, with historical
and archwmological research in the Western
Reserve than the late Colonel Charles Whit-
tlesey, whose investigations and publications
have covered a remarkable range of subjects
with unusual thoroughness. He was a grad-
uate of West Point; fought in the Black Hawl
war; in 1839 was connected with the first
Ohio geological survey; later made a thor-
ough examination of the ancient earthworks
of the state, and in the late forties made a
geological survey of what became the famous
Lake Superior copper region. In the Civil
war he was colonel of the Twentieth Ohio
regiment and chief engineer of the department

of Ohio, on the second day of the batile of

Shiloh being in command of a brigade and
especially commended for bravery. After re-
tiring from the army, Colonel Whittlesey again
turned his attention to the exploration of the
Lake Superior region and the upper Missis-
sippi basin. In 1867 he organized the West-
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ern Reserve Historical Society and remained
its president umtil his death in 1886,

Leonard Case was greatly interested in the
organization and contributed some rare treas-
ures to the museum and librarv. Judge Bald-
win was the second president; Henry C. Ran-
ney, the third; T.. E. Holden, the fourth, and
William H. Cathcart, the fifth.

The present handsotne building was erected
in 1897-8. Constant effort is made by the
president and the curator to gather from peo-
ple on the Reserve originz;l documents, let-
ters and curios. It is surprising how descend-
ants of the pioneers seem to disregard the
value of such things to history. Within the
last few years important diaries and docu-
ments have been burned or thrown on dump
piles, which would have been of great value
to science, literature and history.

CouNty EARLY SETTLERS ASSOCIATION,

The “Early Scttlers’ Association of Cuya-
hoga County,” to whose “Annals™ the writer
is largely indebted for much of the most”
interesting information bearing on the pio-
neer history of Cleveland, has also proved
a real educational force fo the people of the
Western Reserve. The first steps which led
to its organization were taken by H. M. Addi-
son, who, in the fall of 1879, published several
articles on the project in the Cleveland news-
papers.. His suggestion met with such en-
thusiastic response that he circulated a call
for a public meeting of the early settlers of
the city and county, with the result that on
November 1gth the association adopted a con-
stitution, and on the succeeding January iz
the following were chosen its first permanent
officers: Hen. Harvey Rice, president; Hon.
John W. Allen and Hon. Jesse P. Bishop, vice-
presidents ; Thomas Jones, Jr., secretary, and
George C. Dodge, treasurer.

N
Tee OLp VOLUNTEER FIREMEN.

When Cleveland was incorporated in 1836
there were only three hand engines and one
hook and ladder company in its entire depart-
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ment. In 1840 a separate hose company was
organized and equipped, and with this addi-
tion the citizens of Cleveland felt as if theix
property and lives were comparatively safe.
The sources of water supply for the depart-
ment were at first limited to four or five
cisterns located at convenient street corners,
the Ohio canal and the Cuyahoga river. The
waters o\f the lake were not utilized until the
city water works were completed. Fire En-
gine No. T had her home on Superior street,
just west of Water; No. 2z was located on
seneca street and No, 3, a small rotary engine,
had no especial abiding place ; while No. 4 and
the hook and ladder apparatus were housed
on St. Clair street, on the grounds afterward
occupled by steam fire engine No. I and the
headquarters of the department. Old-timers
of Cleveland recall that there was always one
exception to the somewhat bitter rivalry that
existed between Cleveland and Ohic City,
This exception was the friendly feeling which
was aroused when either locality was endan-
- gered by fire.

“SMELLING” ComMITTEE'S Goon -WOoRK.

The wveterans of old Phoenix No. 4 espe-
cially recall the time when they volunteered
to cross the city line and the river to help
in the work of extinguishing a fire on Whiskey
island, at the old Petrie distillery. It seems
that the rule prevailed in all the Cleveland
companies of those days that the roll call, upon
return from fires, must determine who were
present, the absentees being fined if they had
no sufficient excuse. Engine No. 4, at the
distillery fire, took water from the Cuyahoga
river, and was obliged to station itself in a
hog pen, which was obvicusly not the most
cleanly spot in Ohio City. When roll call was
enforced, upon the return of the men tc their
Cleveland quarters, several members were seen
to fall into the ranks who were really not
in service during the fire; but their attempted
deception was put to shame by the appoint-
ment of a special committee {called the smell-
ing committee), which soon discovered from
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the odor attaching to any particular mempe,
whether his story was entitled to belief.

Trarrs oF EarLy CoMPANIES,

Those who served for years in the ranjs
of the pioneer companies, organized in Cleve-
land prior to the coming of its first steam
fire engine, give special chamacteristics to each
of the companies. No. I, for instance, they
say, was well drilled and efficient and com-
posed of quite orderly men; No. 2, comprising
largely mechanics and iaboring men, had more
vim and push than most of the others, while
Neo. 4 had the reputation of containing more
blue blood than ali the rest of the department
combined. The hook and ladder company
were men of real nerve, a goedly share of its
membership being of Scotch blood. Nos. 4
and 5 had especially high reputations for speed
and many were the keen foot races between
these two, encumbered, as they were, with
long drag ropes. It required no little practice
to become an expert in managing the old hand
engines, and determining the proper methed
in which to attack a vigorous fire. Under
the management of Chief Engineer Weather-
ly. the boys were thoroughly drilled in every
detail which could possibly have a hearing
upon their efficiency. First, he directed com-
petitive drills for trying the speed of the fire-
men,  All the available places for obtaining
water were numbered, and upen drill days it
was arranged that the Baptist church bell
should strike a given number, when the boys
would run pell mell, and the first engine
obtaining and throwing a stream was to get
a nominal prize for efficiency. Some limbs
were actually broken in these fierce contests.
but it is probable that the efficiency of the
department of those days was materially in-
creased.

Firer StEaM Fire ENGINE.

The commencement of Cleveland’s modern
depariment was marked by the coming of its
first steam fire engine on November 11, 1862.
The next important steps taken in the prog-
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b
ress of its fire department were the installa-
tion of the fire alarm and telegraph system
in October, 1864, and the launching of its first
fire hoat in August, 1886, From that time
this department of the city government has
steadilv advanced in efficiency, until now the
property and lives of Clevelanders are guard-
ed by about thirty up-to-date fire engines and
about a dozen hook and ladder and hose com-
panies. The headquarters of the department
are in the City Hall

City WarteEr WORKS SYSTEM.

In September, 1836, Cleveland completed
what was then called its new water works
system, although at the present time it would
he considered quite antiquated. It was not
until 1870 that the first water works crib
was launched in the harbor, but the great tun-
nel from the Kirtland sireet pumping station
was not completed until 1¢003. This last work
was considered the culmination of Cleveland’s
modersn system of water works, and through
this gigantic intake the city is now supplied
with from 8o,00c.000 to go,000000 gallons
of water daily. The systemn of today further
comprises two storage reservoirs, one a low-
service reservoir at Fairmont street, and the
other a high-water service, at Kinsman street.
The Fairmont reservoir is 605,205 square feet
in area, 20 feet in depth and has a capacity of
80,000,000 gallons, while the Kinsman street
Teservoir is 256,224 square feet in area, 23
feet deep and has a capacity oi 47,000,000 gal-
Ions. The total cost of the water works sys-
tem, from its inception in 1856 to the pres-
ent time is over $10,000,000, the water supply
being distributed through more than 350 miles
of mains, coming from the lake at an average
distance of one and one-half miles from the
shore. These, in general terms, are the lead-
inig features of Cleveland's present water
works system, which both supplies its citizens
with pure water and is of such invaluable
assistance to the operations of its fire depart-
ment.

CLEvELAND's Civic CENTER.

Much of the civic pride and architectural
grandeur of Cleveland are centered in and
clustered around its public square, better
known as Monument park, at the junction of
Euclid avenue and Superior and Oantario
streets. Its most superb feature is the great
monument dedicated to the memory of the
soldiers and sailors of Cuyahoga county, who
participated in the Civil war. Opposite is the
statute of General Moses Cleaveland, the foun-

SOLDIERS’ AND BAILORS’

CLEVELAND,

MONUMENT,

der of the citjr; across another of its bounding
thoroughfares is a rugged naval cannorn cap-
tured by the intrepid Perrv at the battle of
Lake Erie, and almost flanking the memorial
monument itself is a Confederate gun which
was captured by one oi the brave hatteries
which went from Cuyahoga county. Within
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the adjacent municipal territory are the grand
new federal and county buildings and the
Chamber of Comimerce,

Cleveland is the pioneer in the movement
which has spread througout the country for
the establishment of such civic centers as is
being formed around Monument park. With
her magnificent City Hall, Public Library and
Tnion railway station of the future, this down-
town district will hardly be surpassed in im-
pressiveness or beauty by any in the country.
The plan uitimately invclves the grouping
of magnificent public buildings about the park,
which will extend from the principal business
thoroughfares directly to the lake, where the
grand Union station is to be erected. The
realization of this plan invokes an outlay of
about $20,000,000. :

SOLDIERS AND SAILORS MONUMENT.

“As stated, the civic pride and patriotism of
Cleveland is now symbolized by the Soldiers
and Sailors’ Monument. Its erection was first
proposed by William J. Gleason at a meet-
ing of Camp Barnett of the soldiers and sail-
ors’ society, held in Cleveland, October 22,
1879, and at a grand reunion of ex-soldiers
and sailors of Cuyahoga county, held in Case
hall, Octoher 30, 1879, a special committee re-
ported in favor of the erection of this me-
morial in the center of Monument park. Not
to go into unnecessary details, it is sufficient
to state that the monument was unveiled and
dedicated July 4, 1804, and that its completion
involved an expenditure of $280,000, raised
by public taxation.

The shaft of this magnificent architectural
structure is 125 feet in height. The principal
features of the exterior of the monument are
described by the Monument commissioners
thus: “There are four realistic groups of
bronze statuary, representing in heroic size
the four principal branches of the service:
Tnfantry, Artillery, Cavalry and the Navy;
nof in the stiff and inartistic attitudes of dress
parade, but in fierce conflict, with worn gar-
ments to accord, and the supple action of
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men whose muscles are trained by rushing
through brush and swamps to capture breast-
works. With this in view it was deemed in-
appropriate to nave for a background te such
scenes a building in classical Gothic, Roman-
esque or other popular style of architecture,
but instead to substitute a style made up en-
tirely of military and naval emblems. The
foundation of thé column, or shaft proper, is
twelve feet square, around which is the table
room, the four walls of which are lined with
beautifully colared marble tablets on which are
engraved the names of 10,000 of Cuyahoga's
brave sons, who were willing to risk their all
for their country. To have an ample space
from which to view these tablets necessitated
the planning of a room forty feet square, and,
to he properly proportioned, twenty feet high,
The walls are three feet thick., Surrounding
the building is an esplanade five feet above

‘the grade line and appreached by circular

steps at the four corners. Ilpon the same are
built four massive pedestals, cach nine by
twenty-one feet and ten feet high. To secure
a proper walking and standing space around
these pedestals and the necessary railings, re-
quired the building of an esplanade 100 feet
square. To the top of the surmounting figure
above the carefully proportioned column and
building is, as stated, 123 feet.

“The steps and massive platforms compos-
ing the esplanade are of red Medina stone,
polished to a smooth surface. The building
is of black Quincy granite, with Ambherst
stone trimmings. The roof of this struc-
ture is made of slabs of stone twelve inches
thick, ingeniouslv fitted together so as to he
absolutely watertight. Above the roof is a
connecting pedestal to the die of the column
in the form of a bastioned fort with guns in
barbette, the projecting bastions forming an
outline that blends with the sloping gables of
the building, making harmonious conmections
hetween the column and the broad base of the
mofnittiment.

“The die of the column is of Amherst stone,
representing a section of a fortified tower.
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and is nine feet in diameter with projecting
moldings twelve feet. The shait of the col-
umn is of polished black Quinecy granite in
ten blocks. At the alternate joints of the
shaft are six bronze bands, seventeen inches
in width, containing the names of thirty of
the most prominent battles of the war, com-
mencing alphabetically at the 'top in the fol-
lowing order: Antietam, Atlanta, Benton-
ville, Cedar Mountain, Chickamanga, Corinth,
Donelson, Five Forks, Fori Fisher, Franklin,
Fredericksburg, Gettyshurg, Kenesaw, Knox-
ville, Missionary Ridge, Mobile, Monitor-Mer-
rimac, Nashvilie, New Orleans, Pea Ridge,
Perryville, Petersburg, Resaca, Richmond,
Shiloh, Spotsylvania, Stone River, Vicksburg,
Fort Wagner, Wilderness and Winchester.
The above list was compiled aiter correspond-
ing with some of the most prominent his-
torians and generals of the army.

“The bell of the capital is divided by eight
bent fasces, between which are the emblems
of the eight principal branches of the services
—infantry, cavalry, artillery, navy, engineers,
ordnance, signal and quartermaster. The in-

fantry group, representing ‘The Color Guard,”

was from an actual incident of the war and
depicts with vivid truthfulness, as the sculp-
tor saw it, the gallant defense of the flag of
the 103d Ohio Infantry, at the battle of Re-
saca, where the lion-hearted sergeant, Martin
Striebler, and his gallant guard of eight cor-
porals, stood before the enemy’s fire until they
were all killed or wounded. The artillery
group, ‘At Short Range,’ represeats a piece
in action, fully manned, with an officer in com-
mand., The officer, who has heen looking with
his field glass, has not noticed his wounded
men, and pointing with his finger, says ‘A lit-
tle more to the right, Corporal’ The cavalry
group, ‘The Advance Guard,’ represents a de-
tachment that has struck the line of the enemy.
The confederate soldiers were introduced in
this historical group to show to posterity what
they and their flag were like.

“The navy group, ‘Mortar Practice,’ repre-
sents a scene near Island No. 10 on the Mis-

Vol I—32
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sissippi river, where an officer and five men
are loading a mortar, preparatory to shelling
the intrenchments.

“Over the doors at each of the north and
south entrances are panels with the dates 1861-
1805. Over the north entrance is the Ohio
state seal, and over the south entrance the
United States seal, flanked by battle axes and
draped flags. The gables at the east and west
sides have, respectively, the badges of the

 Grand Army of the Republic and the Loyal

Legion, bordered with draped flags. In the
north and south gables in’'gold letters are en-
graved: ‘Soldiérs’ and Sailors’ Monument.’

“Upon entering the building from Superior
street, the visitor is struck with an effective
group of life size figures in a cast bronze
panel, seven by ten feet, representing the
‘Emancipation of the Slave.” The central fig-
ure, in full relief, is Abraham Lincoln. On
the right hand of the president stand Salmen
P. Chase and John Sherman, the financial men
of the war period, and on the left are Ben
Wade and Joshua R. Giddings, who wére Lin-
coln’s mainstays in the anti-slavery move-
ments. In the background, in bas-relief, are
represented the army and ravy. The panel
on the west side of the shaft is called “The
Beginning of the War in Ohio.” The three
central figures are the war governors, Denni-
son, Tod and Brough, flanked on the right by
Generals McClellan, Cox and Garfield, and
on the left by Generals Rosecrans, Hayes and
Gillmore. The panel on the south side repre-
sents the sanitary commission, the Soldiers’
Aid Society and the hospital service, The
figures shown' are Mrs. Benjamin Rouse,
president; Miss Mary Clarke Brayton, secre-
tary; Miss Ellen F. Terry, treasurer; Miss
Sarah Mahan, clerk, and vice-presidents, Mrs.
John Shelley, Mrs., William Melhinch and Mrs.
J. A. Harris. The fourth panel is entitled
‘The End of the War; or, The Peacemalkers
at City Point.” The scene is where Lincoln

left his steamer ‘River Queen’ and went ashore

to visit Grant’s headquarters. These hronze
historical panels are framed with molded col-
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ored marble bases, with massive fasces at the
four corners, and heavy molded caps. Above
the panels and extending to the ceiling, the
shaft is encased in colored marble.

“In each of the four fasces are three large-
sized bronze medallions of prominent Ohio
commanders, the officers chosen being Hon.
. M. Stanton, secretary of war; (Generals
J. B. McPherson, James B. Hazen, A. Mc-
Dowell McCook, Manning F. Force, James
B. Steadman, J. S. Casement, A. C. Voris, J.
J. Elwell, George W. Morgan, Emerson Op-
dycke and Dr. C. A. Hartman. DBetween the
arches of the windows on the east and west
walls are six niches in which rest bronze busts
of officers who were killed in action: Colonel

W. R. Creighton, Lieutenant-Colonel Mervin’

Clark, Major J. B. Hampson, Captain ‘W
W. Hutchinson, Captain Willlam Smith and
Captain W. J. Woodward. By a vote of the
cotmmission, the bronze busts of General James
Barnett and Captain Levi T. Scofield were or-
dered placed over the porth and south doors,
the former in honor of his distingnished pa-
triotism during the war, he having held the
highest rank of any soldier of our county ; the
latter in recognition of his brilliant services
as architect and sculptor, to the people of the
county and to the commissioners.”

Some of the details ‘of the official descrip-
tion are necessarily omitted, but the quotations
given cannot but give a fair idea of the mag-
nificence and significance of this splendid trib-
ute to the fidelity, even unto death, of the
soldiers and saifors of Cuyahoga county.

TrE CarTURED BriTisH GUN.

In the “Annals of the Early Settlers’ As-
sociation” have been preserved historic facts
both of the gun taken by Commodore Perry
from the British at the battle of Lake Erie,
and the Confederate gun, which was captured
by the Cleveland light artillery, not far from
Laurel Hill, West Virginia, during the cam-
paign of July, 1861, under the command of
General Rosecrans, As ascertained from these
sources, the British gun known as a “Long
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32,” was made at Woolwich Arsenal, Epg.
land, about 1808, and was considered in those
days a powerful siege gun. It was first ygeq
at Fort Malden in a battery planted to com.
mand the mouth of the Detroit river ang
when Commodore Barclay’s fleet was fitted
out to give battle to that of Perry, it wa,
among the guns furnished him from this fort
The gun, Wlhich is now planted opposite the
Soldiers’ and Sailors’ monument, was a bow-
chaser on the “Detroit,” which was the flag-
ship of the British admiral. After the battle
of Lake Erie the guns of the “Detroit” Wére
taken to the city by that name., Fort Malden
afterward.gave place to docks and warehouses
and three of the guns which had been used
for various purposes were given to the city
of Detroit and placed in her public park. One
of these was finally presented to the Western
Reserve Historical Society and originally
stood near the monument which had been
erected to the memory of Commodore Perry,
When the monument itself was removed tc
Wade park the gun remained upon its pres-
ent site.

THE CaAPTURED CONFEDERATE GUN:

The Confederate gun was captured by the
Cleveland Light Artillery during the retrea
of the Confederates, after their left fiank hac
been turned by the Union troops at Laure
Hill, West Virginia. Not many miles away
at the ford of Cheat river, the enemy made z
stand to protect their supply train, After ¢
brief engagement~the artillery fire of the Con-
federates was silericed and, as the Union force:
pushed forward, the special gun which hac
given more trouble than all the rest of the
rebel artillery was taken possession of by the
Cleveland Light Artillery. The gunner whe
was serving this rebel piece was killed by =
cannon shot while putting down a charge
which was as far down as the trunnions wher
he was shot to his death, his body falling over
the axle of his gun. In recognition of the
bravery of the Cleveland Light Artillery, wher
that command was ordered back to Ohio for
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muster out, the commanding officer allowed
them to take with them this captured gun;
not only the gun, but the mules to whom had
been assigned the duty of bringing it into ac-
wion, For several years this old gun was used
to announce the news of a Federal victory;
in 1870 it was turned over to the city of
Cleveland and since that timme has found a
resting place in its public square.

First MiriTary ORGANIZATION.

The military history of Cuyahoga county

wommerces with the first militia muster, which .

was held at Doane’s corners, fune 16, 1806,
Nathaniel Doane being captain; Sylvanus
{iurke, lieutenant, and Samuel Jones, ensign,
with about fifiyv privates. As the surveying
party was at Cleveland upon this date, and
many strangers were also attracted by this
dirst muster, never had so many whites been
gollected together in Cuvahoga county as on
this occasion,

“CLEVELAKD GRAaYS” AND CIivi. WaR,

It was not, however, until 1838, that a dis-
tinctive military organization was formed in
the city. The “Cleveland Grays” came into
existence in that year. This was one of the
first comparnies to volunteer in the Civil war,
entering the service as Company E of the first
volunteer infantry. This command also took
a leading part in the dedication of the “Cleave-
land” statue in-1888 and is still in existence
as a live military organization, occupying one
of the finest armories in the west. The “Cleve-
land Grays” were soon followed to the front
by the famous Seventh Ohio regiment, which
was mustered into the service about two weeks
after the firing upon Sumter, and during the
entire progress of the Civil war, the city and
county furnished the Union cause eleven field
and staff officers:. Three complete companies
of men were among other privates who were
drafted into the ranks. Many Cuyahoga
county men served' in the Eighth Ohio in-
fantry, and especially distinguished themselves
at Gettyshurg. Two hundred and fifty men of
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the Twenty-third regiment were drawn from
Cleveland and had the honor of serving under
Sheridan at Cedar Creek, where he made his
famous ride to save the day at Winchester.
This regiment had the historic distinction of
being commanded by two colonels who after-
ward became presidents of the United States.
After the battle of Bull Run, Cleveland raised
the Forty-first regiment, commanded by Cap-
tain William B. Hazen, of the United States
army, and Company G of the Forty-second
regiment, commanded by Garfield, was chiefly
composed of citizens of Cleveland and Cuya-
hoga county, Nearly 600 men composing the
One Hundred and Third regiment and a large
portion of the One Hundred and Twenty-
eighth, ‘which guarded Johnson’s island, and
of the One Hundred and Fiftieth and One
Hundred and Sixtg-ninth, which garrisoned
Washington in 1864, was largely composed
of Clevelanders. Many sharpshooters were
also drawn from her citizenship, and the Sec-
ond cavalfy, whose campaigns were  chiefly
conducted in the southiwest against Indians,
and Morgan’s men, consisted of citizens of
Cleveland, many of whom werte of consider-
able social prominence. The First-Ohio Light
Artillery, which went to the front on two
days’ notice, in command of Colonel James
Barnett, and fired the first shot of the Civil
war at Phillippi, West Virginia, consisted al-
most entirely of Cleveland soldiers. The
Sixth and Tenth Ohio cavalry and Nineteenth
and Twentieth batteries were also largely re-
cruited in this county, and in the famous Fifth
United States Infantry, composed entirely of
colored men, were fifteen enlisted men from
Cleveland. This regiment had the remark-
able and significant distinction, during its
service in the Civil war, of losing 342 men,
killed and wounded, out of a total strength of
559. These scattering and incomplete state-
ments will give only a fair idea of the achieve-
ments of Cuyahoga county in the war of the
Rebellion ; but no statements, however full and
eulogistic, could hope to do the subject jus-
tice,



C(LEVELAND’S SADDEST LOQCAL INCIDENT.

' Remains of President Lincoln lying in state, in the Public Square,
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One of the first centers for aiding the sol-
diers was at No. g5 Bank street. This was
headquarters for one of the most successful
women aid societies in the United States, and
the -women of Cleveland devoted the best of
their energy and their time to this relief work,
It had at one time 525 auxiliary societies in
adjacent territory, and there was no guarrel-
ing and no disagreement in fhe ranks. In
five years the society collected $130,405.09 in
cash and $1,000,000 in stores, making a grand
total of $1,133.405.00. This amount was re-
ceived mainly from contributions, though the
excess over the million dollars was from the
proceeds of exhibitions, concerts and the great
sanitary fair. The net proceeds of this fair
were $79,000. ' )

No one not living at that time can imagine
the amount of work done. These women
not only gave up their home life and all
pleasures, but many of them went to the front
themselves with supplies. They opened a sol-
diers’ home where sick and disabled soldiers,
going to and from the field, were given lodg-
ing and meals. The money for this purpose
was all arranged by the women themselves.
The govermment gave them no aid. Alto-
gether 36,420 soldiers received aid here, at a
cost of $27,000. These women also kept a
record of the soldiers, so that they could fur-
nish information for those wanting it, and
they had an employment agency, and secured
positions for 205 discharged soldiers. They
cared for the families of soldiers over and
over again, many of them- being regularly
supplied with provisions, and when they were
all through they had $g,000 left. which they
used to settle war ‘claims, bounties, back payv,
etc., free of charge to the claimant.
pity 1o have to dismiss such a wonderful work
as this in so few words; but other details of
the splendid relief work of Cleveland women

are given in the general history. When we,

hear women ought not to have a voice in gov-
ernmental affairs because they cannot fight,
we feel like stating that if they cannot main:
and kill their fellowmen, they at least can

It is &
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bind up their wounds and help to make them
whole.

COMMENCEMENT OF THE PARK SYSTEM.

The grand system of public grounds for
which Cleveland is so widely noted, comprise~
some 1,700 acres of beautified fand and water
and consists of nine Jarge parks and nizmerous
smaller ones. Three of the former are on the
beauliful shores of Lake Erie. The system,
which, generally speaking, is semicircular in
form, is connected by thirty-five iniles of
beautiful roadways and boulevards.

The commencement of this public park sys-
tem was the gift of Jeptha H. Wade, so promi-
nent in the establishment of early télegraph
lines in this part of the country, of more
than eighiy acres to the city. This tract of
lantl, which is now known as Wade park, is
located four and one-half miles from Cleve-
land on Euclid avenue and contains, as its
chief attraction, the Perrv monument, which
was first unveiled in the public square during
September, 1860, and removed {o its present
location soon after Wade park was founded.
Here is dlso the beautiful statue of Harvey
Rice, father of Cleveland’s public schools,
which was Dbuilt by one-cent contributions
from pupils. The large pond in Wade park
is ¢alled Centaur lake and is a favorite re-
sort, enjoved by skating parties in the win-
ter, and in the summer by lovers of hoating.
Its other principal attraction is its “Zoo.”

. JeprmEa H. WaDE,

Jeptha H. Wade, founder of Cleveland’s
firgt real park, was a native of Seneca county,
New York, born in 1811, the son of a sur-
veyor and civil engineer. Although in early
life he gave evidence of decided mechanical
busitiess ability, he studied portrait painting
and earned considerable reputation as an art-
ist. He also became interested in the new in-
vention of the daguerrcotype, but his atten-
tion was diverted from the latter to that of

'telegmphy. He apened a telegraph office in

Jackson, equipping the line along the Michi-
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gan Central railroad, the first to be built west
of Buffalo, and later entered into the con-
struction of telegraph lines in Ohio and other
western states. He is said to have been the
first to build a submarine cable, which he laid
under the Mississippi river at St. Louis, and
eventually he became the general manager of
the first important consolidation of companies
under the well known name of the Western
Union Telegraph Company. Largely through
his efforts a transcontinental telegraph line
was completed to California, and upon the
consolidation of the existing lines west of the
Mississippi, he was made the first president
of the Pacific Telegraph Company, which, in
turn, was consolidated with the Western
Union. Mr, Wade eventually became presi-
dent of the entire system. This office he filled
with remarkable energy and ability until 1867,
when he retired from active business. Iis
contributions to the progress of Cleveland did
nct stop with his donation of Wade parl, but
he erected at his personal expense a large
building for the Protestant Children’s Home,
and otherwise contributed with generosity and
good judgiment to numerous other charities of
both a public and private nature.

GorpoN 4ND ROCKEFELLER PARES.

Gordon park, which lies along the shores
of Lake Frie, west of the former village of
Glenville, is the easternmost of the semicircu-
lar system of parks, which has aiready been
mentioned. Here is also the beginning of
the beautiful Lake Shore boulevard, which is
finely macadamized and extends many miles
east into Lake county. The one hundred and
twenty-two acres covered by Gordon park are
tastefully laid out and complete facilities ai-
forded to lovers of bathing, boating and music.
The drives in this portion of the park system
are especially attractive. The site of the park
was donated to the city, in 1893, by William
J. Gordon.

Adjacent to Gordon park is Doane Brook
park, more popularly known as Rockeieller
park., On Founder’s day, July 22, 1866, the oil

HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

magnate gave the city of Cleveland 276 acres
of land to complete its ownership of the val-
ley of Doane Brook, which thus became the
binding cord of the entire system of parks,
This beautiful siream of water flows for seven
miles through Cleveland’s parks and finally
empties into Lake Erie at Gordon park, Doane
Brook, or Rockefeller park, consisting of over
800 acres, is considered by landscape archi-
tects a5 the most beautiful in the entire sys-
tem of public grounds. As Rockefeller gave
in addition to the land $260,000 to reimburse
the city for its previous outlays in securing
title to the valley of Doane Brook, his entire
donations in this line amount to about
$600.000.

Within Cleveland’s system is also Shaker
Heights park in the township of East Cleve-
land, just within the city limits. It was do-
nated {o the city in January, 186, and con-
sists of 279 acres, receiving its name from
the fact that in the early times its site was
occupied by a famous Shaker settlement.
Edgewater park, the remaining link in Cleve-
land’s system, has a frontage of more than a
mile along Lake Erie and extends inland
about one-third of that distance. It became
city property in I804.

In addition to these heautifu! grounds un-
der the control of the cerporation of Cleve-
land, there are a number of fine amusement
parks under private ownership, the most popu-
far of these is the White City on Euclid ave-
nue, just west of the city limits.

CLevELAND CEMETERIES.

The first interment in Cleveland was thal
of David Eldridge. The surveyer’s diary in
the first chapters of this work tell the details
of his death and burial. The spot was on
the east side of Ontario street, at the corner
of Prospect, now East Ninth street. The old-

“est cemetery, now called Axtell street, is sup-

posed to have been opened about 1800. In
1801 3,000 bodies were moved to Harvard
grove, the land having been sold to a railroarl
company.



HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

Erie Streer CEMETERY.

In 1826 the Erie Street cemetery was laid
out. In 1871 the iron fence which surrounds
it was erected. Here aré burled many of the
men and womeén - who were identified with
the early history of Cleveland: James Kings-
bury and wife, Lorenzo Carter and wife, Seth
Doane, Zalmon Fitch, Abraham Hickox, Peter
Weddell, Samuel Dodge and Levi Johnson.
An effort to do away with this cemetery, re-
moving the bodies and using the lot for busi-
ness, purposes, is meeting with much opposi-
tion on the part of old citizens and historians.

Monroe cemetery was opened in 1841 ; Lake
View cemetery was established in 186¢; the
Riverside cemetery in 1876, and of the Catho-
lic cemeteries there are St. Joseph, consecrated
in 1849; St. John's, purchased in 1835; St.
Mary’s, located in 1861, and Calvary, opened
in 1893. "

Lagkr VIEw CEMETERY.

Lake View cemetery, which contains the
Garfield memorial, Rockefeller monolith,
Wade memorial chapel and the Hanna mauso-
leum, besides being the last resting place of
John Hay, is located just east of Wade park
and south of East Cleveland. It is the largest
and most magnificent cemetery in Cleveland.
Tts grounds were first laid out in 189 and
now contain over 200 acres.

The most stately and impressive tribute to
the dead in Lake View cemetery is the Gar-
field memorial, the general form is that of
a graceful and magnificent tower, fifty feel
in diameter. It iz composed of Chio sand-
stone, its base consisting of a beautiful chapel,
whose principal feature is a lifelike statue of
the great president, the panels portraying
scenes in his grand and impressive life. The
figure represents the martyred ‘president while
he was a member of the House of Representa-
tives. e has risen from his chair and is
represetited in the attitude of commencing one
of his earnest and eloquent addresses to con-
gress.  In the chapel are also thirteen memo-
rial windows. representing the thirteen origi-
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nal stafes and especially applicable to the ca-
reer of Mr. Garfield.

This splendid memorial was formally dedi-
cated May 30, 18g0, the society which pro-
vided the means for its erection was formed
eight vears before, with Governor Charles B.
Foster, Ex-president Hayes and Senator Hen-
ry B. Payne as its most prominent members.
Some $225,000 were finally raised, of which
Cleveland provided: $75,000. President Har-
rison, Vice-president Morton and Ex-presi-
dent Hayes were present at the dedication.
The remains of President Garfield were
brought to Cleveland September 24, 1881, and
and after being laid under a canopy in the
public square and viewed with reverence and
sorrow by thousands of people of that city
until the following Monday, were finally
brought to Lake View. Soon afterward the
movement to erect.the memorial was started by
the incorporation of what was known as the
Garfield National Monument Association. The
casket which contains the remains of the be-
loved statesman and president can be seen in
the crypt below the statue. Not far away
are also the remains of Mr. Garfield’s beloved
mother. '

RiversipeE CEMETERY.

Riverside cemetery, which lies on the west
shores of the Cuyahoga, comprises 10z acres,
which have been, in, continuous process ot
improvement and beautification  since 1876.
There aiso should be mentioned the West Side
cemetery of 100 acres, situated in Rockport
township and laid out in 1895;, Woodland
cemetery of 67 acres, platted:in 1831, first

‘interment in 1853, and Brooklyn cemetery,

which became city property by the annexation
of the village. ’

Eucrm Avenvue SEVENTY YEARS Aco.

Cleveland’s public thoroughfares of today
stretch through forty-two square miles of area
for distances amounting to nearly 700 miles.
Such men as leomard Case kave spémt a
large portion of their lives and generously



INTERIOR OF GARFIELD MEMORIAL.

THE HANNA MAUSOLEUM,.

BTATELY MEMORIALS IN LARE VIEW CEMETERY.



HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE 505

donated their means in the creation of the
“Forest City,” and Euclid avenue is probably
the b_es/‘t known residence street outside ol
New York City.

The Euclid avenue of seventy vyears ago
is thus described, in 1894, by George F. Mar-
shall, an old resident of Cleveland:

“Some one adequate to the task should
write the history of the architecture of Cleve-
land, and give us the eras in which it assumed
its multiform shape. If the Grecians, the
Romans or the Egyptians should find fault

with us when we intermix the Doric, the Ionic.

or the Corinthiar with Queen Ann or McGilli-
cudy, it is none of their business. We will
build as we please and bave our homes to suit
our conveniences, with plenty of closet: and
ample verandas.

“Fifty-seven vears ago my venerable friend,
Truman” P. Handy, made about the first de-
parture in the line of going out of town tc
build a resident. Many of our people regard-
ed it as a wild 'scheme to go sa far from his
place of business for a home. He went away
up Euclid street, almost as far as Erie street,
and there he had erected an’elegant mansion.
It is now a substantial and comely edifice, and
in the hands of the aristocratic Union Club the
face side has not been in the least disfigured
from its original make-up, standing a monu-
ment to the taste of Hon, T. P. Handy. Soon
after.Mr. Iandy had gone so far out of town
for a residence, Irad Kelley and Peter M.
Weddell followed his example, and went still
farther out of town and built on Euclid street
substantial stone residences, each of which
has long since given place to more magnificent
edifices, keeping pace in architecture with the
modern idea. Then, also, Dr. Long thought
it best that he, toc, had hetter abandon a city
hame for one far in the country. He built on
Kinsman street (now called Woodland ave-
nue) a rare and stately home, with its tall,
fluted columns, which has all these years been
equally admired as that of Mr. Handy's.

“Turning our eyes westward, we can now
see’ that fine old mansion on Washington

street, built by the late Charles Winslow, and
now occupied by his son-in-law, C. L. Rus-
sel, Esq,, with its fluted colummns, decorated in
more modern colors, vet its face is as fa-
miliar as it was fifty-seven years ago. On
the same street we no longer see the old man-

. sion owned by LE. T. Sterling, also adorned

with fluted Greek columns, after the style of
the Pantheon. )

“We should never forget that in 1835 Dea-
con Whiitaker followed the Grecian order
and built a stately house at the foot of Water
street, which stands as a monument to the
venerable deacon, but in the present day the
surroundings are not as they were. Some
years later General Dodge followed the Greeks
and built for himself a home on Euclid street
long before that thoroughfare was dignified
with the appellation of avenue. The early gét-
tler will not forget that the first mayor of
Cleveland had erected for his home a most
comely cottage on Michigan street, with the
proverbial Doric columns for its frontal adorn-
ment; but that historic home has long since
taken its abiding place fully a mile to the east-
ward of St. Clair street. And now, while we
are on the subject of fluted adornments, the
Payne cottage on St. Clair street, the eatly
hoine of our honored ex-senator, stood for
years as a notable edifice worthy of any lord
or lady.

“Can we alt call to mind the day T. P. May
built his brick house at the head of Superior
street, on Erie, in order to head off the exten-
sion of our main business street? Nor yet
the house George B. Merwin built at the head
of Prospect street on Hudson street, now
Sterling avenue?

“In casting our eyes back for D0r1<: columns
in our city, that comely cottage situated near
where Bishop Horstmann’s place now stands,
and so long occupied by J. B. Bartlett, for
so many years city clerk, still has its exist-
ence a little farther to the north on Muirson
street. In later years the venerable James
Farmer held to the Grecian order of architec-
ture and erected on Superior street a residence
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(Courtesy of 8. P. Orth.)
CLEVELAXD IN 1833 (Showing the Buffale Road, or Euelid Avenue). - -
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so closely in the shadow of the statgly Hollen-
den that it loses a great share of its former
stately appearance.”

TaE MobErRN AVENUE.

A graphic writer of tfoday thus describes the
same fhoronghfare in terms which, although
somewhat general, are, nevertheless, very sug-
gestive,
glowing senfence which has ever since heen
“the Shibboleth of loval Clevelanders, that ‘Eu-
clid avenye is’ the niost beauatiful street in
the world.” When he said that the avenue
sttetched clear down to the square, an un-
broken front of handsome houses embowered
in lawns as full of sheer’ delight as any Eng-
fand could furnish. Since then, trade has nib-
bled away the fringe of the street] but if the
interested visitor will board an east-hound car
to Perry street, and then walk up Euclid
avente to Case aventie, where he can find a
car again, he will acknowledge the present
triath of Taylor’'s words, and himself repeat
them. The massive houses, artistic in design
and solid in workmanship, may seem too se-
vere at close range, but they stand far from
the road on a gentle ridge, from which the
emerald lawns sweep down to the street in
graceful curves. These stately homes are
typical to Cleveland. No other city has any-
thing that equals their beauty and dignity.”

When Cleveland’s present plan of boule-
vard improvement is completed, more than
thirty miles of handsome streets will com-
pletely encircle the city on all but the Lake
side, connecting its superb systemr of parks.
Among the most stately and noted homes of
Cleveland is that of John D. Rockefeller,
which is located in East Cleveland. It is oc-
cupied and enjoyed by its owner 6niy during
two or three of the summer months.

CLEVELAND'S ARCADES.

Cleveland’s three arcades have proved to be
useful and ornamental. The one running from
Euclid avenue to Supefior was completed in
18g9 and cost $850,000. The Colonial, run-

“Bayard Taylor put on récord that .

‘ing parks and attractive homes.
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ning from Euclid to Prospect, cost $100,000,
and the Wm. Taylor, Son & Co, was erected

n 1905.
CLEVELAND'S VIADUCTS.

Cieveland’s first viaduct was completed in
1879 at a cost of $2,250,000, including right-
of-way. It is known as the Superior street
viaduct ; is more than 3,200 feet in length and
spans the river sixty-eight feet above its sur-
face. In 1886 the Kingshury run, or Hum-
boldt street viaduct, was finished, at a cost
of $250,000; its length is over 8oo feet. The
so-called Central viaduct, completed in 1888,
is (including its approaches) more than a mile
in length and cost $675,000. Besides these
viaducts, which connect the distinct sections of
the city, there are between seventy and eighty
large and modern bridges in constant use.

Tur FEast SioE oF CLEVELAND.

The east side of Cleveland lies on a broad
platean above Lake Erie, with Euclid avenue
stretching along the old Ridge and gently slop-
ing toward the lake, and Wade, Rockefeller
and Gordon parks set into 1t like variegated
gems. As a residential locality, thisr portion
of Cleveland now leads all others in beauty
and iransportation conveniences. Both Eu-
clid and East avenues are magnificent thor-
oughiares which bind this region of charm-

Lyving somewhat further outy but already
surrounded by many fing residences, is the
proposed Dugway Brook doulevard, which i3
to 'extend from John D. Rockefeller’s prop-
erty on Euclid avenue, through a natural ra-
vine of rugged beauvty, to St. Clair avenue,
just east of East One Hundred and Tenth
street, and thence through the wvillage of
Bratenahl to the lake. It is probable that ne
part of Cleveland has seen a more wopderful
growth within the past decade tlan the section
east of Fifty-fifth street, and certainly no
section is cleaner, or more free from the smoke
which is a necessaty evil of great industrial
centers,



Tar “HErRALD” aND THE HARRISES.

The origin of the press of Cleveland has
been noted in the issue of its first newspaper,
the Gagetie and Conunercial Register, on July
28, 1818. The Cleveland Herald made its ap-
pearance on the 18th of the following year.
Edwin Cowles, perhaps the most able journal-
ist which Cleveland ever produced, learned his
trade in the office of the old Clevelond Herald
and among the most prominent and popular of
its early editors was J. A. Harris, who be-
came connected with that journal in 1837.

It was duoring this time that Mr. Cowles
was setving his apprenticeship as a printer
and hoarded in the Harris family. His de-
scription of the operations of the Herald in
those days, with the interesting personality of
Mr. and Mrs. Harris, is here reproduced:
“Mrs. Harris was a worthy helpmeet of her
hushand when he tackled the Clevelund Her-
ald in 1837, and for vears was struggling to
make the venture a success. He boarded
nearly all of his employes, which was a cus-
tom in those good old days, in order to keep
down expenses. [t was my fortune to he one
of Mr. Harris’ apprentices, and I boarded with
him along with the rest of the boys. I can
testify to the kindly care Mrs. Harris used
to exercise over ‘her boys’ and to her great
popularity among them all. (Records of this
kind are found in almost all private letters
of this kind—the pioneer woman was a brave
one,} I first made his (Mr. Harris') acquaint-
ance in the winter of 1838-9, when he was
seated at the ‘Old Round Table’ in his office
in the Central building, then located on the
present site of the National Bani building. I
had then commenced learning my trade, thal
of ‘the art preservative of all arts.” Mr. Har-
ris was a man of extraordinary industry. He
was editor of the Herold, and his own city
editor, reporter, commercial editor, financial
editor, mailing clerk and bookkeeper. In those
days the Herald was considered a great news-
paper, and Mr. Harris a great editor. The
expense of publishing the Herald, including
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everything, did not exceed eighty dollars o
week, The hand press turned out only 240
impressions on one side per hour, equal to 120
sheets printed on both sides. The news wag
received by mail carried in the old-fashioned
stage coach. They had no telegraph news, no
special dispatches, no special correspondents,
no staff of editors, and no lightning presses,
“Now, for the purpose of showing the con-
trast between the Herald when I first kpew
it and the papers of today, I will compare it
with the Leader as a sample. My apology
for doing so is that I am familiar with the
cost of running it and with its details. (Mr.
Cowles was at the time of writing editor of
the Leader, which was a rival of the old
Herald.) The weekly cost of publishing thig
last named paper ranges from forty-two hun-
dred to forty-five hundred dollars a week,
Its presses have turned out during the Gar-
field funeral 5oo papers per minute, printed
both sides, pasted, cut and folded. Its staff
vonsists of one editor-in-chief, one managing
editor, a writing editor, news editor, commer-
cial editor, financial editor, railway editor, city
editor, telegraphic reviser and eight reportets.
In addition, the Leader has two correspon-
dents stationed at Wasghington, who are con-
sidered members of the staff. Scattered all
over the country are nearly two hundred cor-
respondents, who are paid for every piece of
news they send. Instead of waiting for a
stage coach to arrive with a later bafch of
newspapers, from which to cull our news, as
Mr. Harris used to do, the night editor will
receive a dispatch from, say, New York, as
follows: ‘Several failures in Wall street,
great excitement, how many words? The re-
ply would be, perhaps, ‘Send one thousand.’
A dispatch from Cincinnati will be received
saying, for instance, ‘A riot brewing. It prom-
ises to be a serious affair. How many words?
The reply would be, ‘Send full account.” Our
Boston correspondent may send as follows:
‘Beacon sireet terribly excaited. A girl of
wealth and culture eloped with her father’s
coachman, How many words?” The answer
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may be, ‘Four hundred.” It is in this manner
the great modern dailies gather the news by
telegraph from all parts of the Union. Also
by means of the Associated Press news from
Europe, Africa, ' Asia and’South America. Yet,
in spite of the difference of circulation heing
in favor of the modern paper, as compared
with that of the Herald forty-five years ago,
Mr. Harris, as editor, was considered a far
greater man than your humble servant is as
editor of the Leader today. In fact, Mr. Har-
ris was considered the biggest mdn in the
city. Editors have rather degenerated in the
estimation of people, cornpared to what they
were forty years ago.”

Epwin Cowres, JOURNALIST.

For more than forty years Edwin Cowles
was not only the dominant force in Clevelanc

EDWIN COWLES.

journalism, but was acknowledged to be one
of the gréatest editors in the country. Born
in Austinburg, Ashtabula county, Septemiber
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19, 1825, he was descended from New Eng.
fand ancestry, the family line, on his grand-
mother’s side, coming down from Perigrine
White, the first American child born in New
England. In 1835 Mr., Cowles’ father moved
to Cleveland and Edwin, then in his four-
teenth year, was sent to school and also learned
the printer’s trade. When he was nineteen
vears of age he associated himself in the joh
printing business with Timothy H. Smead,
and the firm of Smead & Cowles continued
about nine years. Among other work done
by the office was the printing of the True
Demograt, an anti-slavery paper whose editor
and publisher so radicaliv differed from each
other on political questions that often the
same paper would contain savage editorials on
opposite sides of the question. In the midst.
of this unigue wrangle the Brothers, Joseph
and James Medill, came to Cleveland and es-
tablished the Forest City, a Whig paper. Not
Tong afterward the True Dewmocrat and Forest.
City were consolidated with the job printing
office of Smead & Cowles. Mrt. Smead not
long afterward retiring, left the consolidated
paper known as the Forest City Democrat in
control of the Medills and the Cowleses. This

" was in 1853, and in the following vear the

name of the paper was changed to the Leader.
In the following year the two Medills and
Alfred Cowles went to Chicago and purcl‘iasef‘t!
the Tribune, thus leaving Edwin Cowles as
sole owner of the Cleveland Leader. Tn 185g
he also assumed its editorial management, and
from that time until within a few years of
his death, March 4, 1890, his life Was virtu-
ally a history of the paper. He was a man
not only of remarkable editorial ability, but
his business judgment and acumen were
equally strong. As stated, “Ie was a unique
persorality in the newspaper world; no man
in it is more widely known by reputation, even
if others had a more extensive personal ac-
quaintance.” He had a slight impediment in
his speech and his effort to talk added to his
real energy; made all associates feel—at least
momentarily—energeétic.
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In the winter of 1854-5, Mr. Cowles was
one of those wiwo, in the editorial room of the
Leader, tock the initiatory steps which re-
sulted in the formation of the Republican party
of Ohio. In 1861 President Lincoln appointed
him. postmaster of Cleveland, the first Repub-
Jican who had ever filled that position. He
retained thé office five years and was suc-
céeded by George A. Benedict, editor of the
Herald, During the first year of the war Mr.
Cowles suggested, through his paper, the
nomination by the Republican party of David
Tod, the War Democrat, for the governor-
ship of Ohio. He took this bold course in
order to unite all the loyal elements in sup-
port of the Union, and in 1863 suggested,
through the colummns of his paper, the nomi-
naiion of John Brough, both of whom be-
came toted as two of the three great War
governors of the Buckeye State. In 1866 Mr.
Cowles organized the Leader Printing Com-
pany, and became its president. In 1870 he
also urged, through his paper, the building of
the great viaduct spanning the valley of the
Cuvahoga and connecting the two hill tops,
crossing what had been grimly christened, on
account of the many railroad accidents, the
Valley of Death. The viaduct, as has been
seen, was not only built, but, according to
his suggestion, was completed by the city itself.
During the later years of his life Mr. Cowles
became heavily interested in the Cowles Alum-
inum Company, which was organized to carry
out the patents of one of his sons. His pro-
motion of the interesis of that company kept
him in Eutope for several years and prevented
him from giving his active supervision to the
paper, which, however, remains as the great
memorial to the power and wisdom of his
life-work.

Tue “CLEVELAND PrLaIN DEALER.”

The other great force in the local journal-
ism of Cleveland is embodied in the Plain
Dealer, which was founded by J. W. Gray in
1841. The rather unattractive appearance of
the Cleveland of that vear is thus given: “Su-

e

HISTORY OF THE WESTERN RESERVE

perior, the main street, was unpaved.. P

rooted at the roadside where great canvas-
covered freight wagons, drawn by a half-dozen

horses with bells on theif saddles and bear
skin covers on their heavy leather collars,
were drawn up. The town pump was at Su-
perior and Bank streets. A grove ol oak and
walout trees covered a part of the puin;:
square. A white-washed fence was around
the court house. Loafers lownged in front of
the stores and there were few homes east of
what is now East Ninth street.

“The founder of the Plain Dealer was a
brisk young lawyer and school teacher, who
came to Cleveland from New Hampshire, and.
for more than twenty years he wielded the

- editorial pen and. conducted the newspaper

~

with honesty, sincerity and ability. In poli-
tics the paper was-Democratic, as it is today,
with decidedly . independent proclivities. At
first it was an evening paper, but from the
commencement was published daily. During
the Civil war, the Plain Dealer, under the
management of: Mr, Gray, was.a stanch force
for the Union, but a bitter opponent of Lin-
coln and most of his i)olicies_. The founder of
the Plain Degler died by an accidental shot
from a pistol in the hands of his young son,
and with that ended thewfirst period of the
newspaper’s life.

Among the early writers of the paper, there
were a number of brilliant men whose repu-
tation still survive. One of them is known
in national literature as “Artemus Ward,” but
as a Plain Degler editor was known as Charles
FF. Brown.- The old desk in the newspaper
office which he used to such good advantage
is still preserved in the Western Reserve His-
torical museum,

In 1865 the Plain Dealer passed to the
hands of Major William W. Armstrong, an
Ohio man who died about 1906. During his
administrationi, which continued until 1883,
he twice changed the paper from an evening
to a morning journal.

"In 1885, when the paper passed into the
hands of L. E. Holden, the establishment of
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the present morning and Sunday Plain Dealer
became permanent.  In 188 a contract was
entered into by Mr. Holden with Elbert H.
Baker, for years connected with the Cleveland
Leader, and Charles E. Kennedy, former man-
ager of the Plain Dealer, by which they agreed
for nine vears to edit and publish the paper.
When this contract expired in 1907, Mr. Ken-
nedy retired, and Mr. Holden made a like
contract with Mr, Baker, which still stands,
Scon after the Plain Dealer passed into the
hands of Mr. Holden the Cleveland Herald
was merged with it. At this time both morn-
ing and Sunday editions were established and
the evening newspaper (the Herald) continued
as a separate publication until its sale several
vears ago. On Sunday morning, February
2, 1908, the building in which the Plain Dealer
had been published so many years was totally
destroyed by fire, together with most of the
printing material. Notwithstanding this ca-
lamity, the Plain Dealer force was transferred
without confusion to the Cleveland News office
and at midnight of Sunday the paper was is-
sued as usual in time to be distributed throungh

the early railroad trains to all parts of Ohio -

and the eountry.

The Plain Dealer of today, it is needless to
add, is modern in every detail, its staff con-
sisting of forty-five editors and reporters, with
bundreds of individual correspondents in dif-
ferent parts of the country.

The Press was the first penny newspaper in
Cleveland, and either the first, or one of the
first, two or three penny newspapers in the
country. It was established by Edward W.
Scripps, November 3, 1878. The present ed-
itors are H. N. Rickey, editor-in-chief; E. E.
Martin, editor; R. 'W. Hobbs, managing ed-
itor. The Press is independent in politics, and
its ¢irculation of about 160,000 copies per day
is said to be the largest per capita circulation
of any newsparer printed in this country; by
per capita circrlation is meant circulation, as
compared with the population of the city in
which the newspaper is published.

Generally speaking, the one hundred news-

papers now published in Cleveland cover every
specialty known to the journalism of today.
Among the prominent publications of the city,
besides those mentioned, are the Advertiser,
News, Recorder, World, Anzieger and Wach-
ter am Erie, the last two being especially in-
fluential organs among the Germans. There
are also about seventy weekly, bi-monthly and
monthly papers devoted to such subjects as
agriculture, manufactures, railroads, business
specialties, religion and science, and they are
printed in half a dozen different languages.

InpustrIAL CHARACTER EarLy FIXED.

In classifying the activities of most large
cities 1t is customary to spealk of one of their
important divisions under the head of Com-
merce and Industries ; but in the case of Cleve-
land, the order of these must be reversed, as
for half a century her industries have far
overshadowed her commerce. In 1808 the
trustees of the infant town voted to make
donations of city lots, especially for the en-
couragement of “useful mechanics who shall
actually settle and reside in said town.” Men-
tion has been made of several of Cleveland’s
early industrial plants, but the foundation of
her great iron interests was not laid until
1840.

In that vear came into existence the Cuya-
hoga Steam Furnace Company, whose plant
was not far from the present corporate limits
of Cleveland and was the first substantial en-
terprise in that line to be found in the county.
It is probable that at that time there were not
half a dozen establishments that had machin-
ery propelled by steam within the corporation
of Cleveland. ‘

GREAT GRAIN MARKET.

It should be remembered that in this period
of the city’s history there was still a struggle
for supremacy between its industries and its
commerce, and that the promise seemed to be
that Cleveland was destined as one of the
greatest grain markets of the West. In fact,
it held that position for a time, and the wheat,
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corn and oats that came hither by canal and
were transshipped both east and west appear
to be unequalled both in quantity and quality.

First STEAy PoweER PRESS.

In 1846 a local impetus was given to the
manufacture of steam machinery by the set-
ting up in Cleveland of its first power press
under the management of M. C. Younglove.
This first steam press was placed in the Mer-
chants” Exchange building and for some time
did all the work for the Hergld and Flain
Dealer and other rival newspapers. It thus
widely advertised the advantages of steam
over hand machinery,

Trow Qrg, Coar anp O1r.

In the previous year the Brier IHill coal
mines were opened up, which within a few
vears had a marked stimulating effect upon

both the industrics and commerce of Cleve-

land, especially as about the same time the
first shipments of iron core were made from
the great Lake Superior region, In the fifties
the pioneer railroads of Cleveland were com-

pleted, placing the city, with her growing’

industriés and commerce, in connection with
the wide territory of which she was the natural
metropolis,  Greatly increased facilities were
therefore provided for handling both the iron
ore and the vast quantities of coal necessary
for the operation of her industrial plants, so
that by 1861, which year also marks the com-
mencement of the great industry of coal-oil
refining, there was no doubt whatever as to
the permanent supremacy of Cleveland’s indus-
tries over her cominerce. In 1865, 220,000
barrels of crude oil were received in this
city for the purpose of being refined, and
within the intervening forty-five years this
amount has been increased to nearly 4,500,000
harrels,

Hexzy aAvp WiLLiaMm CHISHOLM.

No personal forces could he mentioned
which had a more pronounced bhearing upor
the founding of Cleveland’s industries upon
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their presént firm basis than the Chisholms,
otherwigse Henry and William, the former, the
founder and president of the great Clevelang
Rolling Mill Company, for vears the largest
establishment of the kind in the world. Henry
Chisholm was born in Scotland in 1822 and
came to Moentreal, Canada, a penniless car-
peater of about twenty years of age. His skl
at his trade as well as his pronounced bﬁsiness
ability made him, hefore many vears, a master
builder, and in this capacity he was first iniro-
duced to the Western Reserve, ifi connection
with the construction of the Cleveland break-
water. In 1837, when Newburg was in its
prime, he founded the firm of Chisholm, Jones
and Companv—the nucleus of the Cleveland
Rolling Mill Company, which has employed
at various periods of its existence from 8000
to 9,000 men.

Early in the history of this great iron man-
ufactory of Cuyvahoga county, William Chis-
holm, the inventor, joined his brother, Henry,
the two engaging for some vears in the manu-

facture of spikes, holts and horseshoes. In

1871 they organized the Union Steel Com-
pany of Cleveland, which first employed Bes-
semer steel in the manufacture of screws.
The Chisholm hrothers afterward devised new
methods and machinery for the manufacture
of steel shovels, spades and scoops, establish-
ing a factory for the néew industry, Ian 1882
they began to make steam engines of a new
model, designed to operate the various trans-
mitters for conveying coal and iron ore from
vessels and to railroad cars. In this line of
iron manufactures Cleveland early became
prominent, and up to the present time her
plants have supplied much of this machinery
required throughout the Western Reserve.

Caarces ¥, Brusy, ELECTRICIAN.

Charles F. Brush, of Cleveland, is an in-
ventor of international reputation, whose pat-
ents in the field of electric lighting have not
only brought him personal fame, but have
been the means of establishing one of Cleve-
land’s greatest industrial plants. Ile is 2
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native of Cuyahoga couhty, born in Euclid in
1840; was educated at the University of Michi-
gan and when a youth of fifteen was construct-

ing microscopes and telescopes and devising,

improvements for the lighting of city streets
by gas. After returning from college he fitted
up a laboratory in Cleveland and obtained a
fine reputation as a chemist, turning his atten-
tion ' to electric lighting in 1875, He is the
acknowledged inventor of modern arc electric
lighting, and was the first to put it into prac-
tical operation in 1876. Since then he has
produced more than fifty patents which have
‘become the basis of the great manufacturing
business conducted by the Brush Electric Com-
pany, of Cleveland, of which he is president,
Dbesides being a director in many other leading
industries, Mr. Brush was decorated by the
French government in 1881 for his achieve-
ments in electric science; was the recipient of
the Rumford medal in 18g9; has been twice
honored with the degree of LL.D, and is a
member of the leading engineering and sci-
entific societies of hoth the new and the
old worlds.

INpusTRIES ‘TN 1870.

Two greater men who have figured in the

development of the industries of Cleveland

could not be mentioned than the above, and
to them is largely due the remarkable prog-
ress of Cleveland in this field since 1870. In
that year the city had sixty-seven manufac-
tories of iron which had an aggregate capital
of $4,682,050 and turned out $6,497,579 worth
of products. Its thirteen flour mills had an
output valued at nearly $z,000,000, while it:
manufactories for the production of clothing
were vet in their infdncy, producing only
$588,0¢0 worth of goods. Altogether, Cuya-
hoga county had nearly 1,150 manufacturing
establishments, practically all of which were
within the city limits. In this line were thirty-
eight incorporated companies, with an aggre-
gate capital of $11,0g0,000. The total capital
invested in manufacturing plants was $13,-
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645,000 ; the hands employed numbered 10,000,
and the wages paid aggregated $4,539.000.

INpUsTRIAL GROWTH FROM I870 TO 1G0O.

The decade from 1870 to 1880 was one of
financial depression and therefore Cleveland’s
industrial growth was not so pronounced dur-
ing this period as from 1880 to 18go. In
1880 the city ranked fifteenth in manufac-
turing in the United States, the capital thus
employed being $19.430,000; the wages paid,
$8,502,000, and the value of manufactures,
$48,604,000. During the succeeding ten years
the number of establishments increased 4o
per cent; the capital, 13.39 per cent, and the
value of manufactured products, 74.5 per cent.
By thé year 1goo Cleveland led all othér Amer-
ican cities in the production of merchant ves-
sels, and was second only to New York in
the manufacture of women's and children’s
clothing. The city was first in the produc:
tion of wire and wire nails, of malleable
iron and of high class automobiles. Accord-
ing to authentic statistics of 19og, Cleveland
is running Detroit a close race in the manu-
facture of automobiles. Cleveland’s total out-
put is now valued at $4,256,000. In this
conmnection it is interesting to note that the
first American factory-made “auto” was the
product of a Cleveland factory and came forth
as late as March, 1808.

GrEAT STEEL AND IrRON CENTER.

Andrew Carnegie has been quoted as say-
ing that Cleveland is destined to become the
greatest steel and iron center in the world,
both because .of its transportation facilities
and its geographical situation. The output of
steel and iron in 1gos formed more than 2z
per cent of the total value of its manufactures,
which amounted to $172,115000. This esti-
mate of the importance of that branch of the
metal industfies does not take into account
the output of the foundries and machine shops,
which, if taken into consideration, would ma-
terially increase the percentage,
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In the manufacture of children’s and wom-
en’s clothing, knitted goods and hats and
many other articles of a personal nature,
Cleveland still holds a high rank among the
cities of the country, and it is almost needless
to say what her position is as regards the
refining of petrcleum oil.  As a whole, the
statistics which represent the present status
of her industries are as follows: Number of
establishinents, 1,617; capital invested, $156,-
500,000 ; salaries paid, $8,308,000; wages paid
to 64,000 emploves, $33,471,000, and cost of
materials, $97,700,000.

WouMEN's Parr in ToHE INDUSTRIES.

The part which women play in this intense
industrial life is thus condensed -in a “Study
of Women’s Work in Cleveland,” made in
1908 by the investigation committee of the
Consumers’ League, under the direction of
Mrs. Florence Woolston :

“There are emploved in Cleveland factories
and sweatshops over 210,018 persons, at least
15,500 of whom are women and girls. Cleve-
land is said to produce greater diversity of
manufactures than any other American city.
Tt was estimated in 1906 that 12,500 different
articles are made in its 3,740 shops. Cleve-
land outranks all other American cities in pro-
duction in motre than nine lines of industry.
These are mainly the construction of  steel
ships, machinery, tools and instruments.
Women are emploved in shops of this kind ta
a great extent. Those so engaged are usually
foreign-born Slavs. This city takes high rank
also in the manufacture of paints, oils and
chewing gum, all of which employ women and
girls to a considerable extent, In the manu-
facture of women's clothing. it is second only
to New York. Foreign-born persons make up
approximately 41 per cent of the city’s total
population, and it is these foreigners who con-
stitute the great majority of factory employes.”

MANUFACTURES IN IGOG.

According to the figures furnished by the
Cleveland Chamber of Commerce for the year
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ending June 30, 1909, the total numher of
manufactures in the city is 3,148 capital,
$171,530,925; wage earners, 758z3: Wageé.
paid, $42,06,848; cost of materials, $100,-
778,813, and value of products, $211,489,753.

SEPPING AND Fi1sH INDUSTRIES,

Cleveland's great shipping industry is now
represented by five immense shipping vyards,
which employ some 18,000 hands and tirn oyt
150 iron and steel vessels every year. Neariy
all the shipping used in the iron ore traffic is
now owned in Cleveland, fully three-fourths
of the mddern steel ships in service on the
great lakes being. the property of local vessel
owners. The entire vessel tonnage owned in
Cleveland is valued at more than $65.000,000,
and the 3350 or more vessels included in the
Cleveland customs district have a tonnage of
504,682.

The fish industry of Cleveland is also vast,
the city itself still maintamning its positioﬁ
as the largest market for fresh and salted
fish in the United States. Its product in this
line is not far from 8o,000 tons, nearly half
of this amount being what is popularly known
as-Jake herring.

There are few cities in the United States in
which labor is more closely or strongly or-
ganized than in Cleveland, and an impressive
evidence of this fact'is found in the dedication
May 14, 1910, of the thirteen-story building
erected by the Brotherhood of ILocomotive
Engineers, from contributions collected from
the members of the order throughout the
United "States. This is the first structure of
this kind ever erected solely by any branch
of organized labor, and the building wiil cost
approximately $1,250/000, its location heing on
the corner of Ontario street and St. Clair
avenue, N. E. The idea of having its own
headquarters originated at the convention of
weomotive engineers at - Columbus, in the
spring of 1908, and the salatied officers of the
brotherhood were authorized to buy property
and erect a oermanent home in Cleveland.
Notwithstanding serious obstructions met in
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the construction of the building, it is expected
that the building will be ready {or occu-
pancy July 15, 1910, when the Brotherhood
of Locomotive Engineers will occupy what
has been generally recogmized as the finest
labor temple in the world, The dedication
ceremonies occurred on the evening of May
14, in Central Armory, where about 5,000 per-
sons, consisting of locomotive engineers and
their "families, gathered to listen to the
speeches of Mayor Baehr, Governor Harmon,
former Governor Herrick and other notables.
In the midst of the impressive ceremonies ten-
der tributes were paid to the memory of P. M.
Arthur, who s8 wisely guided the affairs of the
order for twenty-nine years. His widow, upon
this occasion, presented a speaking likeness of
her hushband to the brotherhood, which will
find an appropriate and prominent place in
this temple dedicated to the best interests of
Tabor. : ‘

CLEVELAND's COMMERCE.

The iron ore from the Lake Superior region
and coal from the fields of southern Ohio and

Pennsylvania and the gigantic’ output of

Cleveland’s tnanufacturing plants constitute
the bulk of the commerce which is moved by
her lake marine and the railroads which radi-
ate from the city. The comparative impor-
tance of the water and iron ways in the move-
ment of this great bulk of manufactures and
raw materials is indicated by the following
late figures: Freight received in Cleveland
by rail, 11,177,000 tons, and forwarded by the
same means, 7,171,000 tons; by lake, during

ihe same period, there were received 4.477,000

tons, and forwarded 3,841,000 tons, Thus the
freight which passed through Cleveland, as
moved by rail and lake, is in the proportion
of 8 to 18, in favor of the railroads. In
.examining the figures bearing on the move-
ment of coal through Cleveland, it is to be
noted-that, although the annual receipts aver-
age about 5,000,000 tons, the shipments
amount to but 2,500,000, thus indicating that
fully one-half of the coal received is ‘con-
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sumed in Iocal manufactories and households,
although the latter consumption is compara-
tively small, ‘ '

CLEVELAND's TIAREOR.

Prior to 1870 the entrance to Cuyahoga
river constituted about all of Cleveland’s har-
bor. The first important improvement was
the extension of the sea wall from the foot of
Waverly avenue to a point about 700 feet
beyond the shore line. The original wall was
constructed of timber, and ahout one-half of
this section of the harbor is still composed of
wood, with a sheet-iron facing, the balance,
however, being of solid masonry. The im-
provements of the general government con-
template a further extension of the harbor east
to Gordon park, four miles from the mouth of
the Cuyahoga river, with converging arms
from the east and west extensions of the old
breakwater, 1,000 feet out to sea. When all
the improvements in contemplation are com-

_ pleted some $10,000,000 will havé been ex-

pended and Cleveland will have a harbor three-
fourths of a mile wide and five miles long,

not to be surpassed in security by any on the

Great Lakes. The city dockage is over ter
miles in extent and is generally divided into
two classes—one for utloading iron ore from
the huge freighters of the Great Takes, and
the other for Iloading coal for transmission
by rail.

CLEVELAND'S RAILROADS.

The opening of the first section of Cleve-
land’s first railroad, the Cleveland, Colum-
bus & Cincinnati, March 16, 1850, has already
been described and in 1852 the Cleveland,
Painesville & Ashtabrila -road and the Cleve-
land & Pittsburg line were opened for traffic,
while in January of the following vear the
line from Cleveland to Norwalk and Toledo
was completed. Tt was not until February,
1854, that the first through train from Buffalo
reached this city over the Cleveland & Ma-
honing railroad, and in the development of
these early lines into more extended systems,
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much of the energy of Cleveland’s capitalists
and railroad men was absorbed for the follow-
ing quarter of a century.

In 18066, when Cleveland’s Union depot was
first thrown open to the public, it was pro-
aounced the largest and best appointed rail-
way station in the country. In May of the
following year the Lake Shore & Michigan
Southern was established, this heing the pred-
ecessor of lhe great railway systems which
now furnish the city—both its industries and
great traveling public—with complete trans-
portation facilities.

The six grand trunk railways, which now
place Cleveland in intimate commection with
every part of the United States, embrace a
mileage of 15856 and are capitalized at
$1,170,c00000. There are six principal de-
pots within the city limits—the Union, situ-
ated on the Lake front at the foot of Water
street, used by the Lake Shore and Michigan
Southern; the Cleveland, Cincinnati, Chicagao
and St. Louis (Big Four) and Cleveland and
Pittshurg railroad (operated by the Pennsyl-
vania company); Erie depot, Superior and
Scuth Water streets, used by the Cleveland
and Mahoning line; Western and Lake Erie
railroad, at the foot of Water street; New
York, Chicagd and Lake Erie (Nickle Platej
on Broadway ; Baltimore and Ohio on the cor-
ner of Champlain and South Water streets;
and the Euclid avenue station of the Cleveland
& Pitisburg railrcad. These great systems
virtually absorb the bulk of the freight and

passenger traffic which centers and passes’

through Cleveland, while the old Ohjo canal,
with its four feet of water, which still stretches
from Cleveland to the Ohio river, more than
300 miles in length, is litfle more than a
memory.

Tae CoaveEr 0F COMMERCE.

No institution in Cleveland is typical of the
hreadth and progress of its industries, its
commerce, its transportation facilities and its
civic honor and strength, except the Chamber
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of Commerce. The name fails to do justice
to the scope of its work and the vast benefitg
which it is daily conferring on the public. Ag
lras heen fairly suggested, it should be more
fittingly designated a Chamber of Citizenship,
Representing, as it does, the best ability of
Cleveland, it is a welcome adviser to the city
council and the State legislature, and theré
is hardly a movement for the development of
manifacturing and commercial Cleveland in
which it has not participated. Through its
standing committees, it represents the manu-
facturer, the wholesale and retail merchant,
the shipper and the transportaiion agent. It
has taken up sanitary problems, brought capi-
tal and labor together, and, as a body ef earn-
est, conservative, intelligent citizens, oiled the
wheels of municipal progress in countless
wavs. It is, in fact, Cleveland more truly
typified than any other association of its peo-
ple.  The necessity for such a representa-
tive body was early recognized, resulting in
the formation of a Board of Trade in 1848,
wlich was reorganized as a Chamber of Com-
merce in 1893. Its present magnificent home
was dedicated in Mayv, 1899.

CHURCHES AND CHARITIES.

Cleveland’s claim has never been seriously
disputed, to the effect that there is no city in
the West which has a greater percertage of
houses of worship in proportion to its popula-
tion, and that Brooklyn alone exceeds it among
all American cities, The western “City of
Churches” has about 350 church edifices,
among which are many of architectural beauty
and significant historical association.

The first minister to appear among any
community in Cleveland was Rey, Seth Hart,
but as he was an agent for the Connecticut
Land Company, his titme was mostly taken up
with business, rather than religious affairs.
Rev. Joseph Badger, the Connecticut mission-
ary, preached in Cleveland at least as early
as 1801, and often visited the village there-
after,
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Trintty CHURCH.

Trinity Parish was organized at the resi-

dence of Phineas Shepherd in 1816. Later
Rev. Robert Searle, the pastor of St. Peter's,
at Ashtabula, perfected it and preached for
the congregation. This Shepherd house was
of logs and stood at No. 230 Peéarl street.
The first confirmation was in 181g9. In 1827
a lot was bought of General Perkins, corner
of St. Clair and Seneca streets, for $2350, and
a c¢hurch was erected at a cost of $3,070. It
was known as “The Church” for many yéars,
and now stands at the corner of Euclid and
Perry. For a leng time Richard Lord and Jo-
siah Barber were the only male members
of Trinity church.

Orp Sroxe CHURCH.

The Tirst Presbyterian church, organized

September 1g, 1820, held its first services in

the old log court house on the public square.
Tt is still familiarly known as the Old Stone
church, the building which the society now
occuples standing on the site of the original
structure of 1834.

CaTHoLIcS IN CLEVELAND.

The first Cathelic priest to hold service in
Cleveland was the Rev, Thomas Martin, in
1826. Previous to the making of the canal,
there. had been few foreigners and, conse-
quently, few Catholics in Cleveland., Today it
has a large Catholic population.

In 1855 a church was built in the valley
which conformed to the present Columbus
street.

Among the most imposing churches of the
present is the St. John’s Catholic Cathedral,
on Superior and Erie streets, in which is the
fine statue of Amadeus Rapp, the first Catho-
lic bhishop of Cleveland. The first resident
Catholic priest of Cleveland was Father John
Dillon, who conducted services in 1837, and
on the following year Rev. P. O. Dwyer found-
ed St. Mary’s parish on the flats. When Bishop
Rapp took possession of the see in 1847, St.

-
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Mary’s church became a cathedral, the edifice
now occupied on the corner of Erie and Su-
pertor street heing erected in 183z

Jewisa ORGANIZATIONS.

In 1839 the first Jewish organization was
established. This was followed by other or-
ganizations, by divisions and consolidations
until now the Hebrews are exceedingly strong.
Their temple stands on Willson avenue,

Tae MrrHODISTS.

In 1827 a Methodist class of five women
and two men was organized. Andrew Tom-
linson was the leader. The same year a class
was formed at Doane’s Corners by eleven
women and nine men.

Birte or THE ErwoRTH LEAGUE.

The Epworth Memorial church is the suc-
cessor Gi what was long known as the Central
Methedist Episcopal church, and in May,
1880, the world-famed Epworth League was
born in its auditorium. B. E. Helman is
credited with being the chief founder of that
society, which has spread over so much of the
civilized world.

The first Baptist meeting was held during
1832 in the old Academy. A sotlety formed
the next year, with fourteen members. '

Among other well known churches are the
Plymouth Congregational, founded in 1852,
and the Pilgrim church, of the same denomi-
nation; St. Paul’s Episcopal church, estab-
lished in 1846 and distinguished for manv
vears for thé harmony of its choral and mu-
sical services ; Woodland Avenue Presbyterian,
with perhaps the largest Sunday-school in the
city ; and the Church of the Unity, Unitarian,
which is the center of much intellectual life.
Among the most magnificent of the churches
lately erected in Cleveland, is that of the Eu-
clid Avenue Presbyterian, on Euclid avenue
at the entrance of the College for Women, of
the Western Reserve University. Tt is of lime-
stone and almost pure Gothic in its style of
architecture.
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Earry WoMEN'S SOCIETIES.

As soon as there is a chuich in any com-
munity women sew for missionaries, but the
first union sewing society in Cleveland, organ-
ized by women irom various churches, was in
1832,

The female Charity Society of Trinity
Church was formed the day after Christmas
in 1837. The female Moral Reform Society
was organized in 1840. Seventy-seven years
ago a “Ladies” Union Prayer Meeting” came
into existence, while in 1830 Mrs. Rebecca
Cromwell Rouse organized the Ladies’ Tract
Society of the wvillage of Cleveland, which
was auxiliary 1o the New York Society.
CLEVELAND ProTESTANT ORPHAN ASYLUM.

The Cleveland Profestant Orphan Asylum
was organized in 1852, Mrs. Stillman Witt
paid the rent for a house at the corner of Erie
and Ohio streets. The house was furnished
by contributions, Eleven children found homes
there at the opening.

Marine HOSPITAL.

The oldest hospital, the Marine, was estab-
iished in 1837. The grounds are bounded
by Erie, Lake and Muirson streets. In 1875
its buildings were leased by the Lakeside Hos-
pital Association, but in 1896 reverted to the
government, and the institution has since con-
tinued to be conducted for the relief of ¢ld
and invalid seamen of the Great Lakes.

Crry INFIRMARY AND IOSPITAL.

Besides the hospital connected with the
Western Reserve University, and the Cleve-
land Homeopathic hospital already mentioned,
are St. Clair, St. Vincent, St. John’s, the Ger-
man FEvangelical, the Cleveland General hos-
pitals and the City Infirmary and Hospital,
the latter located upon a fine site of eighty
acres between Jennings avenue and Scrantom,
and fifty-six acres between that avenue and
the Cuyshoga river. The buildings and
grounds are valued at $780,000, and goo per-
sans are treated daily free of charge. For’
the maintenance of this grand institution $237.-
000 is expended annually. .
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CLEVELAND State HoOsprTaL,

The Cleveland State Hospital embraceg
grounds in the southeastern part of the tity,
comprising ninety-eight acres, and was found;
ed as early as 1835. It has often 1,300 pa-
tients at one time. Cleveland’s Humane Sq.
clety, established in 1873, has stood as the
strong and disinterested protector of help-
less children and animals. Its headquarters
are in the City Hall. The Western Seamen’s
Friend Society, organized in November, 1830,
still conducts its worthy charities through the
Bethel Horne, lo_cated near the river on Spring
streetf.

JosEPu PERKINS, PHILANTHROPIC REFORMER.

Lf any one individual were to be selected
above all others most representative of tha
breadth and practical usefulness of Cleve-
land’s noble charities, no one could be more
safely presented than Joseph- Perkins, known
for many vears both east and west for his dis-
interested efforts to reform the jail system
of the country and further honored as the
father of the Ohio Board of State chatities.
He was a son of General Simon Perkins, one
of the real fathers of the Western Reserve,
and was born in Warren, Trumbull county,
July 5, 1819; graduated from Marietta Col-
fege at the age of twenty, and, after assisting
in setfling his father's estate in Warren, te-
moved to Cleveland in 1852, where he spent
the remainder of his life. He evinced re-
markable ability as a banker and business man
and accumulated a fortune, after which he
sturdily set to work to devote his means ané
his life to the highest ends oi humanity.

In 1867 Governor Cox appointed Mr. Per-
kins a member of the QOhio Board of State
Charities and the latter at once entered into
his work, not only with characteristic energy,
but with the advantage of being enabled to
devote almost his undivided attention to re-
forms connected with penal and charitable
institutions. He not only investigated deeply,
but thought profoundly, and, seeing a defect,
hiad the practical ability to thorowghly remedy
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it. Fmally he perfected a plan which was
accepted by the board, and became known
throughout the country as the Jail System of
the Board of State Charities of Ohio. His
atm, which he so thoroughly accomplished,
was to classify prisoners and avoid the danger
of throwing them together promiscuously, by
which even juvenile offenders were oiten con-
taminated by hardened criminals.

After accomplishing this much needed re-
form, Mr. Perkins turned his atteniion to
the Infirmaiy system of the State, accomplish-
ing as thorough a reform in this department
as in the other. It was through him that much
of the oppressive restraint which had been
placed upon the insane was removed, and this

unfortunate class were given more air and
outdoor work, which, in the end, improved
both their physical and mental health. His in-
firmary plan, like his jail system, has bécome
a model for the country, and the best buildings
erected in the United States have been largely
in accord with. his-investigations and views.
He next planned and largely sustained an ad-
mirable children’s home. Notwithstanding all
these splendid works in the cause of state
charities and in the cause of reforms which
had a national application, Mr, Perkins per-
sistently kept himself in the background and
it-was only through the insistence of his {riends
that the board, as a whole, was not given the
credit for the investigations and reforms which
were conducted almost entirely through him
and at individual expense.: The death of this
admirable man occurred at Saratoga Springs,
New York, August 26, 18835, His sons, Dud-
ley and Joseph, and their -children, survive
him. The beautiful old homestead on Euclid
avenue, f_Where he and his. remarkable wife,
Martha Steele, of Virgina, graciously received
their friends, has passed into other hands,

MoruER or WoMaN’'s CHRISTIAN WoRK.

Of the women of Cleveland, Mrs. Rebecca
Elliott Cromwell Rouse for many years led in
the promotion of its most worthy charities.
She was a Massachusetts woman, married at
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the age of eighteen, and in 1830 moved from
her home in New York City to the Western
Reserve to engage in Missionary work., Mrs.
Rouse had been called “the mother of the
Baptist churches and founder of the Woman’s
Christian Work in Cleveland.” In 1842 she
became the organizer and president of the
Martha Washington society, from which
sprung the Protestant  Orphan Association,
the oldest of the Protestant institutions of
Cleveland ; of this she was the managing di-
rector for years. During the Civil war she
was the leading spirit in relief work, being in-
strumental in collecting and distributing
throtgh various Aid Societies, $2,000,000
worth of hospital supplies for sick and wound-

" ed Union soldiers.

OtHER NOTABLES OF THE COUNTY.

Among the famous men and women whose
personalities have been more or less closely
cofinected with Cleveland amd Cuyahoga
county may be mentioned, besides those whose
sketches have been interwoven with the geén-
eral history, the'late John Hay, Lincoln’s
biographer, and the Republican statésman,
whose home was for some time in Cleveland,
and who died in New Hampshire, Juiy 1, 1g05;
Constance Fennimore Woolson and Sarah K.
Bolton, the widely known authors; the late
Hon. Marcus A. Hanna, the Republican leader
who succeeded Sherman in the United States
Senate in 18¢7; Hon. Rufus P. Ranney, mem-
ber of the Ohio constitutional convention of
1857, twice chosen to the Supreme bench of
the State, and during the last years of his
life a resident of Cleveland;, John D. Rocke-
feller, :;probably not only the wealthiest man
in the wworld, but the one whose name has
been most largely associdted with stupendous

" gifts for the fartherance of higher education

and who has been a power in the beautifying
of Cleveland; John Henry Devereux, who
came to Cleveland from Boston in 1848 and
was as prominent as any one man, both in
the early history of railroad building in the
Western Reserve, in the supervision of mili-
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tary railways duriﬁg the war of the Rebellion,
and in the regulation of the later great trans-
portation systemns; and Reuben Wood and
John DBrough, war governors of Ohio.

GovERNOR REUBEN Woop.

Governar Wood, who was a native of the
Green Mountain state, came to Cleveland in
1818 when he was twenty-five years of age.
He had already mastered his law studies and
at once entered into the practice of his pro-
fession; was three times elected to the Ohio
state senate, ascended the hench of the Su-
preme court in 1833 served-as chief jl‘lstice
from 1841 to 1844 ; was elected governor of
the state on the Democrat ticket in 1850, hut
resigned to accept the position of consul at
Valparaiso, Chili, and afterward became
United States Minister to that country. The
climate of Chili proved so enervating to the
constitution of the governor, who had so long
been accustomed to the more bracing climate
of the north that he was obliged to return to
Ohic. “The tall chief of the Cuyahogas” then
. retired to his farn: near Rockport, Cuyahoga
county, passing the remainder of his days on
beautiful “Evergreen Place.” There he passed
away in 1864, in the midst of the most terrific
contests and terrible perplexities of the Civil
war. ‘

GovERNor JoHN BROUGH.

John Brough, the last of Ohio’s three war
governors, was bors in Marietta in 18171 and
died in Cleveland during the ‘fast year of
the war. His death was hastened, if not di-
rectly caused, by hi§ excessive application to

the service of his state.and country. Gov-

ernor Brough’s early life was spent as a printer

and editor at Athens and Marietta, Ohio, his
first public office being that of state auditor.
fo which he was elected in 1830. As the state
was then still under the malign influences of
the panic of 1837, his task in the reorganiza-
tion of the state finances was one which called
for the soundest qualifications of business and
statesmanship. 'When he retired from office in
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1840 he had gdined a remarkable high repu-
tation as a public officer, leaving, as he did,
.ﬂle finances of the state in a prosperous and
sound condition, In partnership with his
brother, Charles, he then undertook the man-
agement of the Cincinnati Enguirer and made
it into one of the most powerful journals of
the west. At the same time he opened a
law office in Cincinnati, became one of the
most popular Democratic orators in Qhio, and
in 1848 retired temporarily from political life.
In 1853 he was elected president of the Madi-
son and Indianapolis railway. Afterward he
removed to Cleveland; in 1861 declined the
nomination as governor on the Republican
ticket, but in 1863 accepted it from the War-
Democrat party. The arrest of Clement Val-
landigham for disloyalty and his banishment
‘from the United States, with his subsequent
nomination by the Regular Democrats for gov-
ernor of Ohio, brought forth from Mr. Brough
such unflinching utterances in support of the
Union cause that the Republican party united
upon him as its candidate. The result of this
political combination was his election by a
majority of more than 100,000, the largest ever
given for any governor in any state up to that
time, Although impetuous and strong-willed,
Governor Brough was at heart tender and
considerate, and in this crisis of the state’s

“affairs proved not only his remarkable bal-
ance of character, but his true statesmanship.
No one ever questioned his honesty.

LroNARD AND WiILLIAM CASE.

Among other notables of Cleveland, long
identified with epochal periods in its history
and with events which had a decided bearing
on its progress, should  also be mentioned
Leonard and William Case, father and son.
The elder man, who was a Pennsylvanian,
had moved to Warren, Trumbull county, in
his boyhood, and after holding various offices
connected with the courts, was admitted to
the bar in 1814. He was subsequently col-
lector of thé sixth district, and in 1816 moved
to Cleveland to go into the banking business,
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but failed, again practiced law and re-entered
politics. From 1821 ito 1825 he was presi-
dent of the village of Cleveland; was a mem-
ber of the state legislature arid assisted in the
location of the Ohio canal; became the father
of City Beautification, and fixed upon Cleve-
land its name of Forest City; headed the sib-
scription list for the building of its first rail-
way, and in the later years of his life rebuilt
his private fortune, and died, moreover, a be-
loved and honored citizen, in his seventy-ninth
vear. His son William, a native of Cleve-
land, served for years in its council, was twice
mayor, was for some time president of the
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. Post in the Public of Jannary 6, 1606, Tom
Johnson’s ancestors were Virginians, the
first one arriving in this country in 1714, Ope
of these ancestors, Robert Johnson, whe
moved to Kentucky, was a member of the
constitutional convention in 1792 and of the
Kentucky legislature after statehood. Qtherg
of the cannection followed into Kentucky and
then on into Arkansas, and most of them
sympathized with the south during the re-
belhon. Albert W. Johnson, of Arkansag,
was on the staff of John C. Breckenridge and
Early. His wife, with her three sons—Tom
L., William L. and Albert L.—kept as near

THE T. L. JOHNSON RESIDENCE, CLEVELAXD.

Cleveland, Painesville & Ashtabula Railroad
Company, and one of the [ounders of the
city water works, At the time of his death,
in his forty-fifty vear, he was in the midst of
the construction of the Case block, then con-
sidered the finest commercial structure in
Cleveland. William Case was a good, useful,
able, finely educated and warm-hearted man,

Toam LoFTIN JOHNSON.

The following sketch of Tom L. Johnson
is condensed from an article written by Louis

to the father through the military sérvice as
she was allowed, and at the close of the war
they found themselves in Staunton, Virginia,
absolutely penniless,

At this time Tom was only eleven years
old, He soon began work as a newsboy. He
early realized the power of monopoly. He
managed to keep all other people from going
into the business of selling newspapers. He
got fifteen cents for daily papers and twenty-
five cents for picture papers. Of course this'
didn’t last long, but he made eighty-eight dol-
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lars. This was used to get the family to
Louisville. Iere his father, already heavily
in debt, managed to horrow enough money to
operate his cotton plantation. This venture
was not successful. He moved to Evansville,
Indiana, and finally it was decided that Tom
would have to seek work, but his mother “was
obliged to wait for a cold day to give her an
excuse for wearing a crocheted hood of more
comfortable days,” when she went to seek em-
ployment for her son. She secured a place
for him in a rolling mill, and he began work
in 186g. He had had a lLittle schooling, but
had been rather liberally taught by his father
and mother, both of whom were educated. In
Louisville he found a relative named Dy Pont

who had bought a litile street railroad, and '

during the summer he was offered a place in
the office. Here was begun his career as a
street railway magnate. In a few months he
was secretary of the company. He later be-
came superintendent and served until 1876,
when he and two associates bought of Will-
iam H. English, the Democratic candidate for
vice presidentsof the United States, the In-
dianapolis street” car systein. DBefore this
voung Johnson had invented a fare hox, and
from this eventually he made about $30,000.
This Indianapolis system improved under his
management, He. made his father president
of the company. He was treasurer. Muies
were used to draw the cars, and when John-
son made the suggestion to use electricity his
associates disapproved and so he sold out to
them. He netted from this Indiahapolis ven-
ture more than half a million dollars. In
1880 he bought a small line in Cleveland and
introduced some of the discoveries which he
had made in Indianapolis. Then hegan the
great war with Mark Hanna. Johnsen and
his brother Albert acquited interest in the De-
troit street car system and in Brooklyn, but
in 1898 he withdrew from the street car busi-
ness. Through his street car interests he be-
came aware of the money that could be made
in steel rails, went into that business, made
money, and finally, in the financial depression
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of 1903, these establishments were nearly
swamped. Ile married his fourth cousin,
Elizabeth Johnson. In the eighties, having
spent all his time and thought on money-mak-
ing, he accidentally (on the train) hought
Henry George’s “Social Problems,” and later
read his other hooks, became a single taxer,
and has tried ever since to work out this
problem. He became a iriend of Henry
George and together they decided that he
should go into politics in order to help their
reform. In 1886 he was living in New York.
He went to congress in 1888 and there he
fought for his single-tax principle, almost
alone. In 1go1 he was nominated for mayor
of Cleveland and there for eight years he
fought out his single-tax principles. Ilis
friends tell us that his administration found
Cleveland the hest governed city in the United
States. Fnemies tell us he was extravagant,
sel{-seeking and unprincipled. A person in-
terested in money-making cannot understand
how a man could drop that fascinating busi-
ness and try to make the world a better place
for poor people. Such persons call Tom
Johnson a charlatan. He detérmined upon
securing three-cent fare [or the citizens of
Cleveland, and the fight ran over years, but,
at this writing, although Tom Johnson’s for.
tune has largely disappeared, people pay a
lower fare than they ever would have paid
but for him. No man in Cleveland ever had
warmer friends than has he. The loyalty and
the love which hig fellow workers and asso-
ciates show him is most remarkable. Most
men who work with him, love him. Those
who work against him, hate him. Last year
he was defeated for mayor and at present is
in rather delicate health, Some day Cleve-
land will point in pride to Tom Johnsen, as
they do now to Moses Cleaveland and Com-
maodore Perry.

Hown. Marcus A, Hanwa.

Marcus A. Hanna was born in 1837 in New
Lisbon, Ohio. His father was a country phy-
sician of good practice and Mr. Harna never
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suffered poverty and was not developed
through financial struggle as many men are.
His father took his family to Cleveland and
here Mr. Hanna attended college, enlisted in
the war, and immediately thereafter began the
building up of his business. He was a very
social man, entertained largely in his home,
and his wife, who was a daughter of Daniel
Rhodes, had tastes like his, so that their home
was a social center. He soon tock an active
interest in politics and became socially asso-
ciated with Sherman, Garfield and McKinley.
He was like a father to McKiunley, helping him
over rough places and sharing his joys and
sorrows alike. When financial distress came
to Major McKinley, it was Mr. Hanna who
stepped in.and-helped out. The successful Mc-
Kinley campaign was due largely to Mr.
Hanna. He never held but two political
offices——member of the school board of Cleve-
land and the United States senatorship, al-
though he was ofiered cabinet positions.
Amorg the men of his political party he was
known as the leader: Among the disaffected
and the opposing parties, he was a boss.
truth was he was both. He did not introduce
the boss system into Ohio. That must be laid
at Senator Foraker’s door. DBut like all men
who have been successful in business, ]’ﬁe was
determinedsas 1o the carrying out of his poli-
cies. He died in Washington February 1s.
1904, where he was serving as Umted States
senator. There was a funeral service in the
senate, attended by ambassadors from almost
every country, and 1’115 body lay in state in
the Chamber of Cornmerce in Cleveland. Ilis
funeral was held at St. Paul’s church on the
1gth. President Roosevelt, Secretary Taft and
I Pzerpont Morgan were among the distin-
gu1shed men present, [For full details regard-
ing the life of the late senator the reader is
referred to the hiographical department of th1s
work, ]

¢

Hown. Jomx C. Hatg

The bench and bar of Cleveland and Cuya-
hoga county have always presented a front

The ,
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of strength, dignity and brilliancy to the legal
profession of the country. Ameong thase well
worthy of mention is Tlon. John C. Hale, long
presiding judge of the Eighth circuit court of
Ohio. A native of New Hampshire and
graduate of Dartmouth College, he came to
Cleveland in 1857, where he was admitted to
the bar, immediately moving to Elyria, Ohio,
where he formed a partnership with W. W.
Boynton. Mr. Hale was afterward prosecut-
ing attorney of Lorain county, register of
bankruptcy and member of the Ohio consti-
tutional convention of 1872, He was elected
to the hench of the court of common pleas in
1877, serving uatil 1883; then returned to
Cleveland, associated himself again with Judge
Boynton (whose career upon the bench had,
also bheen most noteworthy), and in the fall
of 18¢g2 ascended the bench of the circnit
court, which he Has so adorned with hig
learning and personal character.

Hox. Dawnter R. TiLbEN.

Hon. Daniel R. Tilden, late judge of the
probate court of Cuvahoga county, was a son
of Connecticut, who passed all his adult life
in Ohio and died at Cleveland, March 4, 18g0o,
in his eighty-second year. Adfter practicing
at Ravenma, Portage county, for a number of
years, he made Cleveland his home in 1846.
In 1854 he was elected judge of the probate
court and thus served for thirty-three suc-
cessive yeats, retiring from the bench in 1888,
Cuyahoga county never had a hetter judge or
a more honcrable man.

GENERAL MorTivMer D. LEGGETT.

General Mortimer D, Leggett, as a boy of
fifteen, moved from his New York home to
Montville, Geauga county, and after gradu-
ating from the Teachers’ Academy at Kirt-
land, taught for a time before mastering the
iaw. In 1844 he was admitted to practice;
hecame an M. D. and located in Akron, where
he assisted in creating the famous school law,
and organized the first system of graded
schools west of the Allegheny mountains. He
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achieved a high name both as a lawyer in
practice and theory; settled in Zanesville, of
whose schools he was superintendent, and
during the Civil war raised and commanded
the Seventy-eighth Ohio regiment, rising to
a brigadier-generalship and serving bravely
under both Grant and Sherman. In 1875 he
resigned from the office of commissioner of
patents, to which President Grant had ap-
pointed him four years hefore, and settled in
Cleveland, where he became prominent in the
affairs of the Brush Electric Company, the
Cleveland Public Library, the Cuyahoga
county Soldiers and Sailors’ Monument Asso-
ciation, and in numerous other moventents
dear to the pride and heart of the Forest City.
General Leggett’s death occurred January 6,

1896,

Literary WoOMEN.

Among the early women of note in Cleve-
land was Sarah Coolidge Woolsey. She was
born in a residence which stood near the
Amasa Stone's residence. She was fond of
artistic and antique furniture, sketched and
painted very well, successfully cultivated flow-
ers, but 1§ best known as a writer of storiles
for children. She centributed much to “St.
Nicholas” and other pericdicals of that time.

Another Cleveland woman. to obtain a2 good
deal of fame was Constance Fenimore Wool-
son. She was a grandniece of Fennimore
Cooper, and ranked very near the top of story
writers of her gemeration. ‘“Anne” was one
of her most popular novels and had a large
circulation.

Lydia Hoyt Farmer, a member of the
famous Hovt family, was also a writer of chil-
dren’s books, her works being largely of a
biographical order. Her ability was recog-
nized by Gladstone, and she really was a
genius,

Sarah K. Bolton was one of the most tal-
ented and best known women in Cleveland.
She was a graduate of the seminary founded
by Catherine Beecher, was associated with
literary people and removed to Cleveland at
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the time of her marriage. She was ident]
fied with philanthropic and Christian work
that city; was one of the editors of the Coy
gregationalist in Boston. She spent mug
time in travel, knew personally Jean Ingelow
Robert Browning, Miss Mulock, France
Power Cobb and others. Mrs, Bolton wrot
many stories for children and contributed t
at least forty publications.

Saran Fircm,

No history of Cuyahoga county would h
complete without mentioning Sarah Fitch, wh
from early womanhood was actively intereste:
in all charitable work—particulatly thos
which had a Christian sentiment attached t
them. The reports of humane, Christian
phifanthropic and like works in Cleveland con
tain statements of the immense amount o
good she did during her life time.

MaArTHA STEELE PERKINS.

Mrs, Martha Steele Perkins was one of th
most intellectual, refined and conscienticu
women Cleveland ever had. Her great grand
mother, Betty Washington, was a sister o
General George Washington, and her grand
father, Colonel Howell Lewis, was the onl
one of the nephews mentioned in Georg
Washington’s will. Her father, Robert Steele
a Scotchman, died when she was six year
old and her mother moved to Marietta, Ohio
in order that her children might be well edu
cated. They had lived in Culpepper, Virginia
She married Joseph Perkins and resided it
Warren untii 1851, when the family movec
to Cleveland and both she and her husbana
became active citizens ip the truest sense of
the word. She continued her work as long
as her health permitted.

Mary Perry PAYNE.

The marriage of Henry B. Payne to Mary
Perry, a descendant of the commodore, gives
luster to local history. Mrs, Payne’s love for
learning and liberality to art, her public spirit
and lovely character make for herself a warm
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place in the hearts of Clevelanders, Her
grandson, Harry Payne Whitney, married
Helen Hay, the daughter of John Hay and
the granddaughter of Amasa Stone, and thus
was united two of Cleveland’s oldest families.
ViLLages OUTSIDE OF CLEVELAND,

East Cleveland, immediately joining the cor-
porate limits of the larger city, has a popula-
tion of about 2,700, and although a separate
corporation has really no distinctive character.
wBerea, on the other hand, twelve miles
southwest of Cleveland, which has a popula-
tion of more than 2,500, is known through-
out the country as the headquarters of one of
the greatest quarry industries in the middle
west. Of late years this industry has declined,
with the unusual growth of the cement in-
dustry and its application to constructive work
of all kinds. The Berea sandstone industry
i1s almost confined to the manufacture of
grindstones, which, in fact, has always been
its chief specialty. The founder of this in-
dustry, John Baldwin, also established the
Baldwin University at Berea. It is estimated
that fully three-fourths of the inhabitants of
Berea depend upon the quarries for their sup-
port. Baldwin University was founded in
18346. In 1858 a German department was
established, which was reorganized in 1864 as
the German Wallace College, in honor of its
most liberal patron, James Wallace. The con-
solidated institution, known as Baldwin Uni-
versity and German Wallace College, is under
the auspices of the Methodist Episcopal
church. )

Berea has two English newspapers, the
Clarion and the Enterprise Advertiser (the lat-
ter founded ih 1868), and two German relig-
ious journals, namely : Deutsch-Amerikanische
Zeitscrift and Kirche, the latter edited and
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published by the faculty of Nast Theological
Seminary.

Chagrin Falls is a thriving industrial vil-
lage about eighteen miles south-of-east from
Cleveland, its prosperity being founded upon
a considerable water-power at this point,
caused by the fall of the river of about 150
feet. Several iron foundries, paper mills,
wooden-ware factories and other plants are in
cperation at Chagrin Falls, and as it is situ-
ated on the Wheeling & Lake Erie Railroad
its facilities are adequate for distributing the
products of its factories. Two good news-
papers are also published, the Exponent,
founded in 1874, and the Republican, estab-
lished in 897, _

Bedford, a village of some 1,500 people,
twelve miles southeast of Cleveland, is situ-
ated on the Wheeling & Lake FErie and Pitts-
burg, Fort Wayne & Chicago railroads. Its
principal industry is a thriving chair factory,
and the place is of sufficient importance to
have sustained a well edited newspaper, the
News-Register, since 1801, Bediord earfy had
a free library. It was established by William
0. Taylor, father of Hon. V. A. Taylor.

Just northeast of the recently incorporated
village of Collinwood are the pleasant summer
resorts known as Nottingham and Euclid.
Fuclid township, in the northeastersni part of
the county, was one of its earliest settled sec-
tions, and the little village of Euclid enjoys
the distinction of having erected upon its site
the first frame meeting house with a spire ever
built upon the Western Reserve. The erec-
tion of this house of worship occurred in 1817,
The township was first settled by surveyors
under General Cleaveland—]Joseph Burke and
family, in. 1798, and Timothy Doane and
family, in 180I.

T
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